
YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONYOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Regular MeetingRegular Meeting
AGENDAAGENDA

October 31, 2024 - 9:00 a.m. October 31, 2024 - 9:00 a.m. 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS

625 COURT STREET, ROOM 206
WOODLAND, CA 95695

COMMISSIONERS COMMISSIONERS 
BILL BIASI, CHAIR (CITY MEMBER)

GLORIA PARTIDA, VICE CHAIR (CITY MEMBER)
LUCAS FRERICHS (COUNTY MEMBER)

PAMELA MILLER (PUBLIC MEMBER)
OSCAR VILLEGAS (COUNTY MEMBER)

ALTERNATE COMMISSIONERSALTERNATE COMMISSIONERS
RICHARD DELIBERTY (PUBLIC MEMBER)
TANIA GARCIA-CADENA (CITY MEMBER)

JIM PROVENZA (COUNTY MEMBER)

CHRISTINE CRAWFORD
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

ERIC MAY
COMMISSION COUNSEL

Meetings of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) are held in person in the Board of
Supervisors chambers, located at 625 Court Street, Suite 206, Woodland, CA. LAFCo will, to the best of its
ability, provide hybrid and remote options for LAFCo meeting participants and to the public; however, LAFCo
cannot guarantee these options will be available due to technical limitations outside our control. For
assurance of public comment, LAFCo encourages in-person and written public comments to be submitted.
The Zoom link / phone number and instructions for participating in the meeting through Zoom are set forth in
the "Public Participation Instructions" on the final page of this agenda.

NOTICE:NOTICE:
This agenda has been posted at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting in a location freely
accessible to members of the public, in accordance with the Brown Act and the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act. The public may subscribe to receive emailed agendas, notices and other updates by
contacting staff at lafco@yolocounty.gov.

All persons are invited to testify and submit written comments to the Commission.  If you challenge a
LAFCo action in court, you may be limited to issues raised at the public hearing or submitted as
written comments prior to the close of the public hearing.  If you wish to submit written material at the
hearing, please supply 8 copies.

FPPC - Notice to All Parties and Participants in LAFCo ProceedingsFPPC - Notice to All Parties and Participants in LAFCo Proceedings
All parties and participants on a matter to be heard by the Commission that have made campaign
contributions totaling more than $250 to any Commissioner in the past 12 months must disclose this
fact, either orally or in writing, for the official record as required by Government Code Section 84308.

Contributions and expenditures for political purposes related to any proposal or proceedings before
LAFCo are subject to the reporting requirements of the Political Reform Act and the regulations of the
Fair Political Practices Commission, and must be disclosed to the Commission prior to the hearing on
the matter.

1

mailto:lafco@yolocounty.gov


AGENDAAGENDA

PL EASE NOT EPL EASE NOT E  - The numerical order of items on this agenda is for convenience of reference.
Items may be taken out of order upon request of the Chair or Commission members. 
 
      

CALL TO ORDERCALL TO ORDER
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Public Comment: This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission on subjects
relating to LAFCo purview but not relative to items on this Agenda. The Commission reserves the right to
impose a reasonable time limit on any topic or on any individual speaker.

 

 

CONSENT AGENDACONSENT AGENDA
 

4. Approve the LAFCo meeting minutes of September 26, 2024  
 

5. Correspondence  
 

PUBLIC HEARINGPUBLIC HEARING
 

6. Conducting Authority Protest Hearing adopting Resolution 2024-12Resolution 2024-12 either ordering or terminating the
PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland depending on the protest results
(LAFCo No. 24-01)

 

 

REGULAR AGENDAREGULAR AGENDA
 

7. Study session to discuss the reorganization plan for the Elkhorn Fire Protection District (no action will be
taken)

 

 

8. Consider and adopt the Yolo LAFCo 2025 Meeting Calendar  
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORTEXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
 

9. A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update of staff
activity for the month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request that action be taken
on any item listed.  

a.  10.31.2024 Long Rnage Planning Calendar 

b.  EO Activity Report - September 23 through October 25, 2024 

c.  CALAFCO Legislative Summary

 

 

COMMISSIONER REPORTSCOMMISSIONER REPORTS
 

10. Action items and reports from members of the Commission, including announcements, questions to be
referred to staff, future agenda items, and reports on meetings and information which would be of interest to
the Commission or the public. 

 

 

2



 

ADJOURNMENTADJOURNMENT
 

11. Adjourn to the next Regular LAFCo Meeting  
 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted by 5:00 p.m. Friday, October 25,
2024, at the following places:
 

On the bulletin board outside the east entrance of the Erwin W. Meier County Administration Building,
625 Court Street, Woodland, CA;
 
On the bulletin board outside the Board of Supervisors Chambers, 625 Court Street, Room 206,
Woodland, CA: and,
 
On the LAFCo website at: www.yololafco.org.

ATTEST:
Terri Tuck, Clerk

Yolo LAFCO

A.D.A. NOTICEA.D.A. NOTICE
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal Rules
and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Persons seeking an alternative format should contact
the Commission Clerk for further information. In addition, a person with a disability who requires a
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate in a public meeting
should contact the Commission Clerk as soon as possible and at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. The
Commission Clerk may be reached at 530-666-8048 or at the following address: Yolo LAFCo, 625 Court
Street, Suite 107, Woodland, CA 95695.
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS:PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS:
Meetings of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) are held in person in the Board of
Supervisors chambers, located at 625 Court Street, Room 206, Woodland, CA. If you cannot attend the
LAFCo meeting in person but desire to follow the meeting remotely, make a public comment, or comment on
a specific item on the agenda, you may do so by:

Joining through Zoom on your computer at https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/88179429444, or participate by
phone by calling 1-408-638-0968, Webinar ID: 881 7942 9444. Please note there is no participant code,
you will just hit # again after the recording prompts you.
If you are joining the meeting via Zoom and wish to make a comment on an item, press the "raise a
hand" button. If you are joining the meeting by phone, press *9 to indicate a desire to make comment.
The moderator will call you by name or phone number when it is your turn to comment. Press *6 to
unmute. The Commission reserves the right to impose a reasonable limit on time afforded to any topic
or to any individual speaker.
 
If you wish to submit a written comment on a specific agenda item or on an item not on the agenda,
please email the Commission Clerk at lafco@yolocounty.gov or send to 625 Court Street, Suite 107,
Woodland, CA 95695. Please include meeting date and item number. Please submit your comment by
2:00pm the day prior to the meeting, if possible, to provide the Commission a reasonable opportunity to
review your comment in advance of the meeting. All written comments are distributed to the
Commission, filed into the record, but will not be read aloud.
 

Please note that LAFCo cannot guarantee that hybrid and remote options will be available due to technical
limitations outside our control. For assurance of public comment, LAFCo encourages in-person or written
public comments to be submitted. 

 

3

http://www.yololafco.org
https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/88179429444
mailto:lafco@yolocounty.gov


4



  
  Consent    Consent    4. 4.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 10/31/2024  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Approve the LAFCo meeting minutes of September 26, 2024

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the LAFCo meeting minutes of September 26, 2024.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT-Minutes 09.26.24

Form ReviewForm Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 10/22/2024 09:09 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/22/2024

5



6



YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
September 26, 2024 

The Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission met on the 26th day of September 2024, at 9:00 
a.m. in the Yolo County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 625 Court Street, Room 206, Woodland 
CA. Voting members present were Chair and City Member Bill Biasi, City Member Alternate (A) 
Tania Garcia-Cadena, County Members Lucas Frerichs and Oscar Villegas, and Public Member 
Pamela Miller. Voting member Gloria Partida, Vice Chair, was absent. Others present were Public 
Member Alternate Richard DeLiberty, Executive Officer Christine Crawford, Clerk Terri Tuck, and 
Counsel Eric May. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Biasi called the Meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 

Item № 1 Pledge 

Commissioner Miller led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Item № 2 Roll Call 

PRESENT: DeLiberty (A), Garcia-Cadena (A), Miller, Villegas, Biasi  
ABSENT: Frerichs, Partida 

Item № 3 Public Comments 

There were no public comments.  

CONSENT 

Item № 4 Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of July 25, 2024 

Item № 5 Review and file the Fiscal Year 2023/24 Fourth Quarter Financial Update 

Item № 6 Review and file the LAFCo Financial Statement for Fiscal Years ending 2023, 
2022, and 2021  

Item № 7 Correspondence 

Minute Order 2024-39: The recommended actions on Consent were approved. 

MOTION: Villegas SECOND: Miller 
AYES: Miller, Villegas, Biasi 
ABSENT: Frerichs 
ABSTAIN: Garcia-Cadena (A) 

Commissioner Frerichs arrived at the dais at 9:05 a.m. 

 

Item 4 

7



PUBLIC HEARING 

Item № 8 Consider adopting Resolution 2024-11, approving the PIRMI and Sports Park 
Reorganization to the City of Woodland (annexation to the city and 
concurrent detachment from the Springlake Fire Protection District) and 
determining no further environmental review is needed under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (LAFCo No. 24-01) 

After an overview report by staff, the Chair opened the Public Hearing. Carly Plumer, a 
business owner in the PIRMI area spoke. The Public Hearing was closed.  

Minute Order 2024-40: The Commission adopted Resolution 2024-11, approving the 
PIRMI area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (annexation to the 
city and concurrent detachment from the Springlake Fire Protection District), determining 
no further environmental review is needed under the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA), and set the October 31, 2024, meeting for conducting authority protest 
proceedings. 

MOTION: Frerichs SECOND: Villegas 
AYES: Frerichs, Garcia-Cadena (A), Miller, Villegas, Biasi 
NOES: None 

Item № 9 Continued Public Hearing to consider approval of Resolution 2024-10 
adopting the Municipal Service Review (MSR) for Flood Protection Services 
and approving a Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update for Reclamation District 
(RD) 999, and determine the MSR/SOI is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (LAFCo No. 23-03) 

After an overview report by staff, the Chair opened the continued Public Hearing. Tom 
Slater from RD 999 spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. The Public Hearing was 
reopened, and Patrick Markham from RD 765 spoke. The Public Hearing was closed. 

Minute Order 2024-41: The Commission adopted Resolution 2024-10, approving the 
MSR for Flood Protection Services and a SOI Update for RD 999. Staff was also directed 
to add an agenda item to a future meeting in 6 to 12 months to provide an update on the 
status of RD 307 and RD 765 MSR recommendations and to invite representatives of the 
two districts to attend the meeting. 

MOTION: Miller SECOND: Garcia-Cadena (A) 
AYES: Frerichs, Garcia-Cadena (A), Miller, Villegas, Biasi 
NOES: None 

REGULAR AGENDA 

Item № 10 Consider a request from the Elkhorn Fire Protection District (FPD) to waive 
the Yolo LAFCo Deposit/Fee Schedule for its application to dissolve the FPD 
in response to the 2022 municipal services review (MSR) for fire protection 
agencies 

After an overview report by staff, Elkhorn FPD President Tom Kane spoke. 

Minute Order 2024-42: The recommended action was approved. 

8



MOTION: Frerichs SECOND: Villegas 
AYES: Frerichs, Garcia-Cadena (A), Miller, Villegas, Biasi 
NOES: None 
 

Item № 11 Executive Officer’s Report 

The Commission was given written reports of the Executive Officer’s activities for the 
period of July 22 through September 20, 2024, and was verbally updated on recent events 
relevant to the Commission, including the Long Range Planning Calendar and Legislative 
Summary. 

Staff commented on the recruitment process stating that in working with Human 
Resources it was determined that the best approach for LAFCo was to create new job 
classifications specific to LAFCo, a LAFCo Principal Planner and LAFCo Senior Planner. 
These two new job classifications will be on the on October 8th Board of Supervisors 
agenda for approval in adding them to the County’s class specification list and, quickly 
thereafter, the recruitment process will begin. 

Staff noted that some of the MSR/SOI updates scheduled for FY 2024/25 may be pushed 
out to a later date due to a high volume of upcoming projects. 

Item № 12 Commissioner Reports 

Commissioner Frerichs asked staff if the protest for the PIRMI area of the City of 
Woodland’s Reorganization would affect the Sports Park portion of the reorganization. 

Staff responded that the protest would also affect the Sports Park. If the proposal failed, 
Woodland would have to bring the Sports Park annexation back to LAFCo as a new 
standalone proposal, but there would be no waiting period. 

Commissioner Biasi noted as a reminder to everyone that the October meeting had been 
moved to October 31st. 

Item № 13 Adjournment 
 

Minute Order 2024-43: By order of the Chair, the meeting was adjourned at 9:57 a.m. to 
the next regular meeting. 
 
  

____________________________ 
Bill Biasi, Chair 

ATTEST:      Local Agency Formation Commission  
        County of Yolo, State of California 
________________________________ 
Terri Tuck 
Clerk to the Commission 

9



10



  
  Consent    Consent    5. 5.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 10/31/2024  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Correspondence

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and file the following correspondence:

A.  CALAFCO The Sphere 2024

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-CALAFCO The Sphere 2024

Form ReviewForm Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 10/22/2024 10:05 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/22/2024

11



12



Item 5-ATT A

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



  
  Public Hearings    Public Hearings    6. 6.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 10/31/2024  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Conducting Authority Protest Hearing adopting Resolution 2024-12Resolution 2024-12 either ordering or terminating the PIRMI Area
and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland depending on the protest results (LAFCo No. 24-01)

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Request staff summarize the Commission's resolution from September 26, 2024, making determinations to
approve the Reorganization subject to the protest process.

2. Open the Public Hearing and hear any oral or written protest.
3. Close the Public Hearing and determine the value of landowner protest received (a short recess may be

needed).
4. Adopt Resolution 2024-12 either ordering or terminating the Reorganization depending on the value of

landowner protest received (drafts of both versions are attached). 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
LAFCo approved this proposal on September 26, 2024, subject to a protest process and set October 31, 2024, as
the hearing date for Conducting Authority proceedings. Government Code §57000 et. seq. indicates a protest
hearing must be conducted after the Commission approves a reorganization without 100% consent from the
landowners and/or registered voters. Yolo LAFCo is the Conducting Authority for the protest process as specified by
Government Code Section 57050(b). Because there is only one registered voter in the subject territory, the territory
is considered "uninhabited" for LAFCo purposes (defined as less than 12 registered voters), which means the
protest thresholds are adjusted to remove triggering an election as a possible outcome. This hearing allows
landowners to submit official written or oral protest to the reorganization if they desire.

LAFCo has no discretion over the outcome of the protest proceedings. Its role is to provide a forum to receive
protest, determine the results, and act accordingly. 

Government Code Section 57091 states as follows: (a) For purposes of Section 57075, relating to annexations,
detachments, and latent powers ... in the case of uninhabited territory, the commission shall take one of the
following actions:

(A) Terminate proceedings if a majority protest exists (i.e. landowners who own 50% or more of the assessed
value of land). 
(B) Order the change of organization or reorganization if written protests have been filed and not withdrawn by
owners of land who own less than 50 percent of the total assessed value of land within the affected territory.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The PIRMI Area and Sports Park territory is already within the City's Sphere of Influence and therefore, annexation
has been anticipated. The reorganization proposal was initiated by the City and includes an annexation to the City of
Woodland and concurrent detachment from the Springlake Fire Protection District. This hearing for this petition has
been properly mailed, posted, and published as required by the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act. Notices of the Public
Hearing were published in the Woodland Democrat on October 9, 2024, and mailed to all landowners of record within
the affected territory plus a 300-foot radius.

There are two annexation agreements staff is currently aware of between the City and landowners in the subject
area (the City is researching to see if there are more as City services have been extended to many of these
parcels): (1) the PIRMI property executed in 1996; and (2) the Volkl property executed in 1998 (currently owned by
Denbeste CA Properties, LLC and K&L Properties, LLC/DBA Western Trencher & Equipment, Inc.). The agreements
reference the City and County were unable to agree to property tax negotiations required for annexation at the time.
So instead, the City agreed to extend services outside its boundary to facilitate development in exchange for both

37



landowners agreeing to annex to the City when possible at their own expense. The agreement terms have not been
triggered, but both were recorded and run with the land. The agreements do not, however, waive the landowners'
rights to protest the City's annexation proposal.  

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A1-Reso2024-12 PIRMI Area and Sports Park Ordering Reorg to City of Woodland (Conducting Authority)
10.31.2024
ATT A2-Reso2024-12 PIRMI Area and Sports Park Terminating Reorg to City of Woodland (Conducting Authority)
10.31.2024
ATT B-Assessor's Office landowners and value of land for affected territory (LAFCo 24-01)
ATT C-Excerpt from Sep 26, 2024 Staff Report

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 10/22/2024 01:37 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 10/08/2024 12:30 PM
Final Approval Date: 10/22/2024

38



RESOLUTION № 2024-12 

Conducting Authority Resolution Ordering the  
PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland 

(LAFCo No. 24-01)  

WHEREAS, the City initiated the application via Resolution No. 8172 adopted on November 7, 2023, 
pursuant to Section 56654 of the Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2024, the City of Woodland submitted an application to the Yolo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) for a reorganization of three areas totaling 144 +/- acres on 
the periphery of the City of Woodland (City); and 

WHEREAS, the application was subsequently amended to remove the “Westucky and Barnard” area 
because it did not meet the definition of “contiguous” per Government Code Section 56031(b); 

WHEREAS, the amended application includes an annexation of the “PIRMI” (Pacific International 
Rice Mills) area (88 +/- acres) Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs): 027-340-005, 027-340-008, 027-
340-010; 027-340-020; 027-340-022; 027-340-027; 027-340-033; 027-340-034; 027-340-035; 027-
340-037; 027-340-038; 027-340-039; and the two adjacent UPRR rights of way which have been
assigned a portion of APN 027-340-099; and of the “Sports Park” area (40 +/- acres) APN 041-080-
002 (collectively, “subject territory”) to the City of Woodland and a concurrent detachment of the
subject territory from the Springlake Fire Protection District; and

WHEREAS, the proposal is subject to a negotiated tax exchange per Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99 which was approved by the Yolo County Board of Supervisors (Agreement No. 22-251) 
and the City of Woodland (Agreement No. 23-01), filed on February 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer reviewed the proposal and prepared and filed a report with 
recommendations with this Commission at least five (5) days prior to LAFCo’s September 26, 2024, 
meeting during which the project was set to be considered; and 

WHEREAS, an opportunity was given to all interested persons, organizations, and agencies to 
present oral or written testimony, protests, objections, and any other information concerning the 
proposal and all related matters; and  

WHEREAS, at said meeting, the Commission reviewed and considered the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) documentation and the Executive Officer’s Report including all the information, 
recommendations, findings, and conditions contained therein; and 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2024, the Commission adopted Resolution 2024-11 approving the 
PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo No. 24-01), initiating 
conducting authority proceedings and set October 31, 2024, as the date of the protest hearing date; 
and 

WHEREAS, notices of the October 31, 2024 protest hearing were published in the Woodland 
Democrat on October 9, 2024, and mailed to all landowners of record within the affected territory 
plus a 300-foot radius; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code §57000 et seq. designates the Commission as the Conducting 
Authority for protest proceedings; and 

Item 6-ATT A1

39



WHEREAS, on October 31, 2024, the Commission conducted a public hearing, summarized LAFCo 
Resolution 2024-11, and provided an opportunity to all interested persons, organizations, and 
agencies to present oral or written protests, objections, and any other information concerning the 
proposal and all related matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, following the close of the protest hearing, the Commission determined the value of all 
valid written protests filed and not withdrawn. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, acting 
as the Conducting Authority for these proceedings, orders the PIRMI Area and Sports Park 
Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo No. 24-01), subject to the following findings and 
conditions of approval: 
 
Finding 
 
1. Finding:  The number of the written protests of landowners filed and not withdrawn is less 

than 50 percent of the assessed value of land within the affected territory. 
 

Evidence: Protest was received from landowners who own $___________ or %_____ of the 
$12,367,027 total assessed value of land in the affected territory.  

 
Conditions of Approval 

 
1. The applicant and the real party of interest, if different, agree to defend, indemnify, hold 

harmless and release the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, its agents, officers, 
attorney and employees from any claim, action or proceeding brought against any of them, 
the purpose of which to attack, set aside, void, or annul the approval of this application or 
adoption of the environmental review which accompanies it. This indemnification obligation 
shall include, but not be limited to, damages, costs, expenses, attorney fees, or expert 
witness fees that may be asserted by any person or entity, including the applicant, arising out 
of or in connection with the approval of this application, whether or not there is concurrent 
passive negligence of the part of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission its agents, 
officers, attorney or employees. 
 

2. The project will be subject to all appropriate LAFCo, State Board of Equalization, and County 
Clerk-Recorder fees prior to recording the Certificate of Completion for the PIRMI Area and 
Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo № 24-01). 
 

3. The Executive Officer shall record a Certificate of Completion with the County Recorder.  
 

4. The effective date of the approval of this annexation is five (5) days after the date the 
Certificate of Completion is recorded by the County Recorder. 

 
  

40



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission, County of Yolo, State of 
California, this 31st day of October 2024, by the following vote. 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Bill Biasi, Chair 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
______________________________ 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Eric May, Commission Counsel 
 
 

41



42



RESOLUTION № 2024-12 

Conducting Authority Resolution Terminating the  
PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland 

(LAFCo No. 24-01)  

WHEREAS, the City initiated the application via Resolution No. 8172 adopted on November 7, 2023, 
pursuant to Section 56654 of the Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2024, the City of Woodland submitted an application to the Yolo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) for a reorganization of three areas totaling 144 +/- acres on 
the periphery of the City of Woodland (City); and 

WHEREAS, the application was subsequently amended to remove the “Westucky and Barnard” area 
because it did not meet the definition of “contiguous” per Government Code Section 56031(b); 

WHEREAS, the amended application includes an annexation of the “PIRMI” (Pacific International 
Rice Mills) area (88 +/- acres) Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs): 027-340-005, 027-340-008, 027-
340-010; 027-340-020; 027-340-022; 027-340-027; 027-340-033; 027-340-034; 027-340-035; 027-
340-037; 027-340-038; 027-340-039; and the two adjacent UPRR rights of way which have been
assigned a portion of APN 027-340-099; and of the “Sports Park” area (40 +/- acres) APN 041-080-
002 (collectively, “subject territory”) to the City of Woodland and a concurrent detachment of the
subject territory from the Springlake Fire Protection District; and

WHEREAS, the proposal is subject to a negotiated tax exchange per Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99 which was approved by the Yolo County Board of Supervisors (Agreement No. 22-251) 
and the City of Woodland (Agreement No. 23-01), filed on February 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer reviewed the proposal and prepared and filed a report with 
recommendations with this Commission at least five (5) days prior to LAFCo’s September 26, 2024, 
meeting during which the project was set to be considered; and 

WHEREAS, an opportunity was given to all interested persons, organizations, and agencies to 
present oral or written testimony, protests, objections, and any other information concerning the 
proposal and all related matters; and  

WHEREAS, at said meeting, the Commission reviewed and considered the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) documentation and the Executive Officer’s Report including all the information, 
recommendations, findings, and conditions contained therein; and 

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2024, the Commission adopted Resolution 2024-11 approving the 
PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo No. 24-01), initiating 
conducting authority proceedings and set October 31, 2024, as the date of the protest hearing date; 
and 

WHEREAS, notices of the October 31, 2024 protest hearing were published in the Woodland 
Democrat on October 9, 2024, and mailed to all landowners of record within the affected territory 
plus a 300-foot radius; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code §57000 et seq. designates the Commission as the Conducting 
Authority for protest proceedings; and 

Item 6-ATT A2

43



WHEREAS, on October 31, 2024, the Commission conducted a public hearing, summarized LAFCo 
Resolution 2024-11, and provided an opportunity to all interested persons, organizations, and 
agencies to present oral or written protests, objections, and any other information concerning the 
proposal and all related matters; and 
 
WHEREAS, following the close of the protest hearing, the Commission determined the value of all 
valid written protests filed and not withdrawn. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, acting 
as the Conducting Authority for these proceedings, terminates the PIRMI Area and Sports Park 
Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo No. 24-01), subject to the following findings: 
 
Finding 
 
1. Finding:  The number of the written protests of landowners filed and not withdrawn is 50 

percent or greater than of the assessed value of land within the affected territory. 
 

Evidence: Protest was received from landowners who own $___________ or %_____ of the 
$12,367,027 total assessed value of land in the affected territory.  

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission, County of Yolo, State of 
California, this 31st day of October 2024, by the following vote. 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Bill Biasi, Chair 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 

 
______________________________ 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Eric May, Commission Counsel 

44



APN Acreage
Assessed 

Value of Land
% of 
Total Owner Name Mailing Address Site Address

AREA 2: PIRMI
027‐340‐005 3.00        239,247$          2% Bunfill Fam 2015 Rev Trust (Dennis K and C Diana Bunfill Trustees) PO Box 1586 Davis CA 95617 589 N East Street
027‐340‐008 4.96        744,967$          6% Farmers Rice Cooperative 2566 River Plaza Dr Sacramento CA 95833‐3673 39845 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐010 3.00        282,034$          2% Vulcan Lands Inc 1200 Urban Center Dr Birmingham AL 35242 39820 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐020 9.89        1,484,629$      12% Farmers Rice Cooperative/DBA Pacific International Rice Mills LLC 2566 River Plaza Dr Sacramento CA 95833‐3673 39845 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐022 1.55        260,262$          2% California Oils Corporation/DBA Seedtec International PO Box 2210 Woodland CA 95776 585 N East Street
027‐340‐027 8.50        135,304$          1% City of Woodland 300 1st Street Woodland CA 95695 39816 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐033 11.76     187,196$          2% City of Woodland 300 1st Street Woodland CA 95695 39816 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐034 3.38        244,292$          2% W Kent Ramos Fam LP 1515 S River Road West Sacramento CA 95691 597 N East Street
027‐340‐035 10.76     5,610,000$      45% Premier Real Estate Holdings LLC 1428 Chestnut St, Suite 110 Chattanooga TN 37402‐4431 595 N East Street
027‐340‐037 9.00        1,372,000$      11% K&L Properties, LLC PO Box 368 Yolo CA 95697 39804 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐038 8.94        794,998$          6% Denbeste CA Properties LLC 810 Denbeste CR #107 Windsor CA 95492 39800 Kentucky Ave
027‐340‐039 2.69        272,223$          2% Vulcan Lands Inc 1200 Urban Center Dr Birmingham AL 35242 39820 Kentucky Ave

43,747$            0% Union Pacific Railroad 1400 Douglas Street Omaha NE 68179

AREA 3: Sports Park
041‐080‐002 40.00     696,128$          6% City of Woodland 300 1st Street Woodland CA 95695 40280 CR 24C

Total Land Value 12,367,027$    100%

Item 6-ATT B

45



46



Public Hearings    Public Hearings    8. 8. 
LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 09/26/2024

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider adopting Resolution 2024-11Resolution 2024-11, approving the PIRMI and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of
Woodland (annexation to the City and concurrent detachment from the Springlake Fire Protection District) and
determining no further environmental review is needed under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)
(LAFCo No. 24-01)

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Receive a staff presentation and open the Public Hearing for public comments on this item.
2. Close the Public Hearing and consider the information presented in the staff report and during the Public

Hearing.
3. Adopt Resolution No. 2024-11 approving the PIRMI and Sports Park reorganization to the City of Woodland

(LAFCo No. 24-01) and determining no further environmental review is needed under CEQA.

FFIISSCCAALL  IIMMPPAACCTT
No fiscal impact. The City of Woodland submitted a deposit and is required per the conditions of approval to 
reimburse LAFCo for all processing costs.

RREEAASSOONNSS  FFOORR  RREECCOOMMMMEENNDDEEDD  AACCTTIIOONN
The City of Woodland initiated this proposal via City resolution and submitted an application to Yolo LAFCo for 
processing and consideration. Government Code Section 56375 provides LAFCo with the power to review and 
approve proposals for "changes in organization" consistent with policies adopted by the Commission. Government 
Code Section 56021 defines "changes of organization" to include annexation to a city and detaching from a special 
district, among other actions. The City of Woodland approved a tax sharing agreement (Agreement No. 23-01) with 
the Yolo County Board of Supervisors (Agreement No. 22-251) filed on February 1, 2023. The subject territory is 
included within the Sphere of Influence for the City of Woodland as approved by Yolo LAFCo in December 2018 to 
match the City's Urban Limit Line (ULL) previously approved by its voters. The City of Woodland approved pre-
zoning for the subject territory consistent with its 2035 General Plan on November 7, 2023.

BBAACCKKGGRROOUUNNDD
PPrrooppoossaall  DDeessccrriippttiioonn
The subject territory consists of approximately 128+/- acres total comprised of two areas: (1) the PIRMI industrial 
area located in the north periphery of the City of Woodland on the NW corner of Kentucky Ave and N East 
Street; and (2) the Sports Park parcel located in the south periphery of the City immediately east of (or 
behind) the Woodland Community and Senior Center. The territory is currently zoned by the County as Heavy 
Industrial and Agricultural Intensive. Both areas are within the City's Sphere of Influence (SOI). The proposed 
reorganization includes: (1) annexation to the City of Woodland; and (2) concurrent detachment from the Springlake 
Fire Protection District (FPD). The Springlake FPD contracts with the City of Woodland for fire protection 
services already, and the current service agreement passes through all its revenue to the City for services. 
Therefore, although the reorganization will change the path by which the City receives this fire protection 
funding, the City provides fire services either way. 

FFaaccttoorrss  ttoo  bbee  CCoonnssiiddeerreedd
In accordance with Government Code Section 56668, the factors to be considered in the review of a proposal shall 
include, but is not limited to, all of the following:

1. Population, land use, natural boundaries, proximity to other populated areas, and likelihood of significant
growth in the area during the next 10 years;

2. The need for organized community services, the adequacy of governmental services and controls in the area,

Item 6-ATT C

47



the probable effect of annexation and alternative courses of action;
3. The effect of the proposed action (and alternative actions) on the adjacent areas, social and economic

interests and local governmental structure of the county;
4. The conformity of the proposal and its effects with adopted commission policies on providing planned, orderly

and efficient patterns of urban development;
5. The effect of the proposal on maintaining the physical and economic integrity of agricultural lands;
6. The definiteness of the boundaries with parcel lines and the creation of any "islands" or corridors of

unincorporated territory;
7. A regional transportation plan;
8. The proposal's consistency with city or county general and specific plans;
9. The sphere of influence of any applicable local agency;

10. The ability of the receiving entity to provide services and the sufficiency of revenue for those services;
11. Availability of water supplies;
12. The extent to which the proposal will affect a city in achieving its regional housing needs as determined by its

council of governments;
13. Any information or comments from landowners, voters or residents of the affected territory;
14. Any information relating to existing land use designations;
15. The extent to which the proposal will promote environmental justice, meaning the fair treatment of people of all

races, cultures and incomes with respect to the provision of public services; and
16. Any local hazard plan or safety element of a general plan that identifies land as a very high fire hazard zone.

Yolo LAFCo's local standards of evaluation for proposals (Section 2.0) elaborates on these state-mandated factors
with the following additional standards:

1. Favoring municipal services by cities in urbanized areas rather than the County or special districts;
2. Consider not only present service needs of the area under consideration, but shall also consider future

services which may be required to take care of future growth or expansion;
3. Requiring a service plan that describes the extension, financing and timing of services;
4. The Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG) regional housing needs for the agency, recent

update (and certification) of the agency's housing element, whether the agency's inclusionary housing
ordinance complies with SACOG's Affordable Housing Compact, the degree to which the proposal meets the
agency's "low income" and "very low income" housing targets, and the extent to which the proposal advances
or inhibits the agency's housing element; and

5. Consistency with the Agricultural Conservation Policy.

AnalysisAnalysis
The proposed annexation area is within the City's sphere of influence (SOI) and is a logical and orderly extension of
the City's urban area. The annexation areas either already have City services/utilities or will need them, and the
City has the capacity and is the appropriate agency to provide services. The subject territory is mostly surrounded
by existing city jurisdiction and the proposal does not create any "islands" or corridors of unincorporated territory.
Both annexation areas are not identified for growth in the June 2024 Land Use Assumptions adopted by SACOG for
the regional transportation plan. However, both areas are already mostly developed and are consistent with the
City's 2035 General Plan land use designations. The City of Woodland has pre-zoned the PIRMI area as Industrial
(I)/Light Industrial Flex Overlay (IF) and Pubic/Quasi-Public (PQP) with Light Industrial Flex Overlay (IF) with one
8.75-acre parcel designated as Flood Study Area (FSA). The Sports Park parcel is prezoned Public/Quasi Public
(PQP) consistent with its General Plan and the existing surrounding uses. 

The PIRMI area is already developed with industrial uses, and the annexation area is disturbed with no agricultural
land remaining. The Sports Park parcel is partially developed (approximately 1/3rd) with sports fields and the rear
portion is undeveloped with agricultural uses (approximately 20 acres of Prime Farmland). However, the City
exempts public facilities from agricultural mitigation requirements (and the County's mitigation ordinance does as
well).  Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 4.13 provides "that, in the case of proposals that are undertaken exclusively for
the benefit of a public agency, the Commission should review the applicability of the mitigation requirements set
forth in this Policy on a case-by-case basis to determine the appropriateness of requiring mitigation in any particular
case." Staff recommends mitigation not be required for this portion of the Sports Park parcel because the City does
not have a practical option to locate elsewhere, impacts are not growth inducing, a Statement of Overriding
Considerations has already been adopted for this impact, the City does not have additional funding to mitigate this
impact which would reduce public facilities, and the public good is served by the Sports Park project. Therefore,
staff recommends the proposal is consistent with Yolo LAFCo's Agricultural Conservation Policy. 

The City's 2035 General Plan and CAP EIR analyzed the capacity and availability of public services and utilities
and concluded that the City has the capacity to serve the project. Because the territory will be zoned Industrial and
Public/Quasi Public, it will not affect the City in achieving its regional housing needs. The proposal boundary does

48



not exclude any existing communities that should be provided equal access to municipal services. The subject area
is not identified as a "very high fire hazard zone". The City and County have approved a property tax exchange
agreement. For all these reasons, staff recommends that the annexation proposal complies with required state
factors and local standards of evaluation. There are 12 parcels affected in the PIRMI (Pacific International Rice
Mills) area which do not have 100% landowner participation and 1 Sports Park parcel owned by the City (13 total).
Therefore, LAFCo approval of the proposed reorganization is subject to Protest Proceedings and the protest
hearing will be scheduled for the October 31, 2024, LAFCo meeting.  

Agency and Public CommentsAgency and Public Comments  
The project was routed to all subject, affected, and interested agencies on July 22, 2024. No issues or objections
have been received from any affected or interested agency. Public notices were mailed to all landowners and
registered voters within 300 feet, and published in the Woodland Daily Democrat on September 4, 2024. Staff
received a telephone call from the property owner of 1000 Kentucky Ave. with questions about the proposal, but he
was not concerned about the annexation. Staff received another phone message, but has not connected with the
caller yet. 

CEQACEQA
The Woodland City Council approved pre-zoning for the subject territory on November 7, 2023, and determined the
Project was not subject to further CEQA environmental review pursuant to Guidelines Section 15183. Yolo LAFCo's
CEQA review as a Responsible Agency is more limited than a Lead Agency. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section
15096, Yolo LAFCo has considered the determination by the City of Woodland and has determined that it is
acceptable and legally adequate for use by Yolo LAFCo. The proposed annexations are consistent with the
development type and density established by existing land use designations under the City of Woodland General
Plan policies for which an EIR was certified in 2017 ("2035 General Plan and CAP EIR"). 

When Yolo LAFCo prepared a Municipal Service Review and expanded the City's Sphere of Influence to match the
Urban Limit Line (ULL), LAFCo disclosed that future annexation would result in the loss of prime agricultural land.
The City's 2035 General Plan EIR mitigates this loss consistent with LAFCo policies and LAFCo concluded that
this loss was significant and unavoidable (Yolo LAFCo Resolution No. 2018-10 adopted on January 24, 2019).
Annexation does not result in any additional impacts that were not already disclosed. 

No new significant impacts specifically related to the proposed annexations or annexation areas are anticipated that
were not otherwise identified under the 2035 General Plan and CAP EIR. There would not be potentially significant
off-site and/or cumulative impacts that the 2035 General Plan and CAP EIR failed to evaluate. There is no
substantial new information that would result in more severe impacts than anticipated by the 2035 General Plan and
CAP EIR. 

The proposed annexations would be subject to uniformly applied policies, regulations, and development standards
that implement the 2035 General Plan, as applicable to any future development located within the annexation areas.
Where the 2035 General Plan includes policies and implementation programs developed for the purposes of
minimizing and avoiding environmental impacts and that would not be otherwise enforced through existing
regulations, the City would enforce implementation of such policies and implementation programs through
Conditions of Approval. Therefore, no further review is required for the project pursuant to CEQA Guidelines
Section 15183.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-Reso 2024-11 PIRMI and Sports Park Reorg to City of Woodland 09.26.2024
ATT B-Annexation Area Prezoning and Location Exhibit
ATT C-Correspondence
ATT D-City of Woodland Annexation Initial Study_June 2022

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 09/17/2024 11:26 AM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 09/10/2024 12:57 PM
Final Approval Date: 09/17/2024

49



YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
RESOLUTION № 2024-11 

Approving the PIRMI and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland and 
determining no further environmental review is needed under the  

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (LAFCo № 24-01) 

WHEREAS, on August 9, 2024, the City of Woodland submitted an application to the Yolo Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) for a reorganization of three areas totaling 144 +/- acres on 
the periphery of the City of Woodland (City); and 

WHEREAS, the application was subsequently amended to remove the “Westucky and Barnard” area 
because it did not meet the definition of “contiguous” per Government Code Section 56031(b); 

WHEREAS, the amended application includes an annexation of the “PIRMI” (Pacific International Rice 
Mills) area (88 +/- acres) Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs): 027-340-005, 027-340-008, 027-340-
010; 027-340-020; 027-340-022; 027-340-027; 027-340-033; 027-340-034; 027-340-035; 027-340-
037; 027-340-038; 027-340-039; and of the “Sports Park” area (40 +/- acres) APN 041-080-002 
(“subject territory”) to the City of Woodland and a concurrent detachment of the subject territory from 
the Springlake Fire Protection District; and 

WHEREAS, the City initiated the application via Resolution No. 8172 adopted on November 7, 2023, 
pursuant to Section 56654 of the Government Code; and 

WHEREAS, the proposal is subject to a negotiated tax exchange per Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99 which was approved by the Yolo County Board of Supervisors (Agreement No. 22-251) 
and the City of Woodland (Agreement No. 23-01), filed on February 1, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the project was routed to all subject, affected, and interested agencies on July 22, 2024 
and public notices were mailed to all landowners and registered voters within 300 feet and published 
in the Woodland Daily Democrat on September 4, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the project was analyzed in accordance with all applicable sections of the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act, Yolo LAFCo Standards of Evaluation and Agricultural Policy, and all other matters 
presented as prescribed by law; and  

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer reviewed the proposal and prepared and filed a report with 
recommendations with this Commission at least five (5) days prior to the date of the September 26, 
2024, meeting during which the project was set to be considered; and 

WHEREAS, an opportunity was given to all interested persons, organizations, and agencies to present 
oral or written testimony, protests, objections, and any other information concerning the proposal and 
all related matters; and  

WHEREAS, at said meeting, the Commission reviewed and considered the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) documentation and the Executive Officer’s Report including all the information, 
recommendations, findings, and conditions contained therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission approves 
the PIRMI and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo No. 24-01), consisting of 
(1) Annexation to the City; and (2) Concurrent detachment from the Springlake Fire Protection District

Item 8-ATT A

50



of APNs 027-340-005, 027-340-008, 027-340-010; 027-340-020; 027-340-022; 027-340-027; 027-
340-033; 027-340-034; 027-340-035; 027-340-037; 027-340-038; 027-340-039; and APN 041-080-
002, as illustrated in Exhibit A, subject to the following findings and conditions of approval. The 
Executive Officer is directed to file a CEQA Notice of Determination and set the conducting authority 
protest proceeding on this reorganization. 
 
Findings 
 
CEQA Findings 
1. Finding:  No further environmental review is required under CEQA for the PIRMI and Sports 

Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo № 24-01) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 
Section 15183, which applies to projects consistent with the development density established 
by existing General Plan policies for which an EIR was certified and there are no project-
specific significant effects which are particular to the project or the site.  
 
Evidence: The Woodland City Council approved pre-zoning for the subject territory on 
November 7, 2023, and determined the Project was not subject to further CEQA environmental 
review pursuant to Guidelines Section 15183. Yolo LAFCo’s CEQA review as a Responsible 
Agency is more limited than a Lead Agency. Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15096, 
Yolo LAFCo has considered the determination by the City of Woodland and has determined 
that it is acceptable and legally adequate for use by Yolo LAFCo. The proposed annexations 
are consistent with the development type and density established by existing land use 
designations under the City of Woodland General Plan policies for which the City certified an 
EIR in 2017 (“2035 General Plan and CAP EIR”).  
 
When Yolo LAFCo prepared a Municipal Service Review and expanded the City’s Sphere of 
Influence to match the Urban Limit Line (ULL), LAFCo disclosed that future annexation would 
result in the loss of prime agricultural land. The City’s 2035 General Plan EIR mitigates for this 
loss in a manner that is consistent with LAFCo policies, and LAFCo concluded that this loss 
was significant and unavoidable (Yolo LAFCo Resolution No. 2018-10 adopted on January 24, 
2019). Annexation does not result in any additional impacts that were not already disclosed.  
 
No new significant impacts specifically related to the proposed annexations or annexation 
areas are anticipated that were not otherwise identified under the 2035 General Plan and CAP 
EIR. There would not be potentially significant off-site and/or cumulative impacts that the 2035 
General Plan and CAP EIR failed to evaluate. There is no substantial new information that 
would result in more severe impacts than anticipated by the 2035 General Plan and CAP EIR.  
 
The proposed annexations would be subject to uniformly applied policies, regulations, and 
development standards that implement the 2035 General Plan, as applicable to any future 
development located within the annexation areas. Where the 2035 General Plan includes 
policies and implementation programs developed for the purposes of minimizing and avoiding 
environmental impacts and that would not be otherwise enforced through existing regulations, 
the City would enforce implementation of such policies and implementation programs through 
Conditions of Approval. Therefore, no further review is required for the project pursuant to 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15183. 

 

51



Project Findings 
2. Finding:  The reorganization proposal was considered and analyzed in accordance with the 

required factors listed in Government Code Section 56668 and Yolo LAFCo Standards of 
Evaluation for proposals (Yolo LAFCo Project Policies Section 2.0).   

 
Evidence:  The proposed annexation area is within the City's sphere of influence (SOI) and is 
a logical and orderly extension of the City’s urban area. The annexation areas either already 
have City services/utilities or will need them, and the City has the capacity and is the 
appropriate agency to provide services. The subject territory is mostly surrounded by existing 
city jurisdiction and the proposal does not create any "islands" or corridors of unincorporated 
territory. Both annexation areas are not identified for growth in the June 2024 Land Use 
Assumptions adopted by SACOG for the regional transportation plan. However, both areas 
are already mostly developed and are consistent with the City's 2035 General Plan land use 
designations. The City of Woodland has pre-zoned the PIRMI area as Industrial (I)/Light 
Industrial Flex Overlay (IF) and Pubic/Quasi-Public (PQP) with Light Industrial Flex Overlay 
(IF) with one 8.75-acre parcel designated as Flood Study Area (FSA). The Sports Park parcel 
is prezoned Public/Quasi Public (PQP) consistent with its General Plan and the existing 
surrounding uses. 
 
The PIRMI area is already developed with industrial uses, and the annexation area is disturbed 
with no agricultural land remaining. The Sports Park parcel is partially developed 
(approximately 1/3rd) with sports fields and the rear portion is undeveloped with agricultural 
uses. The loss of agricultural land (approximately 20 acres of Prime Farmland) for the future 
development of the remainder of the parcel was determined to be significant and unavoidable 
because much of Yolo County contains fertile agricultural soils, it is difficult to expand the City’s 
footprint without impacting agricultural land. However, the City’s ULL preempts any 
uncontrolled sprawl.  
 
The City exempts public facilities from agricultural mitigation requirements (and the County's 
mitigation ordinance does as well). Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 4.13 provides “that, in the case 
of proposals that are undertaken exclusively for the benefit of a public agency, the Commission 
should review the applicability of the mitigation requirements set forth in this Policy on a case-
by-case basis to determine the appropriateness of requiring mitigation in any particular case.” 
Staff recommends mitigation not be required for this portion of the Sports Park parcel because 
the City does not have a practical option to locate elsewhere, impacts are not growth inducing, 
a Statement of Overriding Considerations has already been adopted for this impact, the City 
does not have additional funding to mitigate this impact which would reduce public facilities, 
and the public good is served by the Sports Park project. Therefore, the proposal is consistent 
with Yolo LAFCo's Agricultural Conservation Policy.  
 
The City's 2035 General Plan and CAP EIR analyzed the capacity and availability of public 
services and utilities and concluded that the City has the capacity to serve the project. Because 
the territory will be zoned Industrial and Public/Quasi Public, it will not affect the City in 
achieving its regional housing needs. The proposal boundary does not exclude any existing 
communities that should be provided equal access to municipal services. The proposal area 
is not identified as a "very high fire hazard zone". The City and County have approved a 
property tax exchange agreement. For all these reasons, staff recommends that the 
annexation proposal complies with required state factors and local standards of evaluation. 

 

52



3. Finding: The mitigation requirements of Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 4.09 for the annexation of 
prime agricultural lands associated with the Sports Park are excused because the Project is 
undertaken exclusively for the benefit of a public agency and meets the factors identified in 
Policy 4.13. 

 
Evidence: The Project includes the annexation of approximately 20 acres of prime agricultural 
lands, representing approximately half of the Sports Park parcel. Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 
4.09 generally requires the preservation of an acre of farmland for each acre of prime farmland 
annexed into the City. However, Policy 4.13 provides “that, in the case of proposals that are 
undertaken exclusively for the benefit of a public agency, the Commission should review the 
applicability of the mitigation requirements set forth in this Policy on a case-by-case basis to 
determine the appropriateness of requiring mitigation in any particular case.”  In making this 
determination, the Commission considered the following factors: 
 
• The City does not have a practical option to locate the Sports Park on non-prime or less 

prime agricultural land. 
• The City’s ULL limits the potential for further sprawl, and annexation of the Sports Park 

parcel does not have growth inducing impacts. 
• The Sports Park project is exempt from the City’s mitigation requirements. Similarly, had 

the project been undertaken in the unincorporated area, the project would have been 
exempt from the County’s mitigation ordinance as well. See Yolo County Code of 
Ordinances § 8-2.404(c)(2)(ii). 

• The 2035 General Plan and Climate Action Plan (CAP) EIR (pages 6-13 and 6-14) (City of 
Woodland 2016) determined that new development throughout the region would convert 
agricultural land, including Important Farmland, to nonagricultural uses resulting in a 
significant cumulative impact. New development envisioned by the 2035 General Plan 
would convert all the farmland in the Planning Area to non-agricultural uses (see Table 6-
5 of the 2035 General Plan and CAP EIR). Therefore, the City analyzed the loss of 
agricultural land associated with implementation of the General Plan including the Sports 
Park project and determined that there was no feasible mitigation and that the impact was 
significant and unavoidable. The City adopted a Statement of Overriding Considerations 
for this impact, and LAFCo concluded that this loss was significant and unavoidable (Yolo 
LAFCo Resolution No. 2018-10 adopted on January 24, 2019). 

• The City does not have funding available for the acquisition of farmland conservation 
easements, and imposing LAFCo’s mitigation requirement would reduce the funding 
available for the recreational facilities associated with the project. 

• The Sports Park project is necessary to meet the City’s immediate needs for increased 
park and recreational space. 

• The public good served by the Sports Park project, including enhanced recreational 
opportunities for children and adults, outweighs the purposes served by LAFCo Policy 4.09. 

 
Conditions of Approval 

 
1. The applicant and the real party of interest, if different, agree to defend, indemnify, hold 

harmless and release the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, its agents, officers, 
attorney and employees from any claim, action or proceeding brought against any of them, the 
purpose of which to attack, set aside, void, or annul the approval of this application or adoption 
of the environmental review which accompanies it. This indemnification obligation shall include, 
but not be limited to, damages, costs, expenses, attorney fees, or expert witness fees that may 
be asserted by any person or entity, including the applicant, arising out of or in connection with 

53



the approval of this application, whether or not there is concurrent passive negligence of the 
part of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission its agents, officers, attorney or 
employees. 
 

2. The project will be subject to all appropriate LAFCo, State Board of Equalization, and County 
Clerk-Recorder fees prior to recording the Certificate of Completion for the PIRMI and Sports 
Park Reorganization to the City of Woodland (LAFCo № 24-01). 
 

3. Provided the thresholds for a protest are not met, the Executive Officer shall record a 
Certificate of Completion with the County Recorder.  

4. The effective date of the approval of this annexation will be 5 days after the date the Certificate 
of Completion is recorded by the County Recorder. 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission, State of California, this 
26th day of September 2024, by the following vote. 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  

 
 
______________________________ 
Bill Biasi, Chair 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
______________________________ 
Christine Crawford, Executive Officer 
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission 
 
 
Approved as to form: 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
Eric May, Commission Counsel 

54



55



56



57



 

  Page 1 of 2
   

449-161 
September 4, 2024 

 

PIRMI AREA AND SPORTS PARK REORGANIZATION TO THE CITY OF 

WOODLAND 

PIRMI AREA 

THAT portion of real property situate in the County of Yolo, State of California, and being a 

portion of Section 20, Township 10 North, Range 2 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, and 

being more particularly described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at the Southeast corner of said Section 20, said point also being the Northwest corner 

of “Commercial Industrial Park Annexation” LAFCO Proceeding No. 372, said point also being the 

Northeast corner of “East Street-Kentucky Avenue Reorganization” LAFCO Proceeding No. 818;  

 

(1) thence, from said POINT OF BEGINNING and along the North line of said “East Street-

Kentucky Avenue Reorganization”, North 89°59'52" West 1,191.04 feet to the Southeast corner of 

the “North Kentucky Partners Reorganization” LAFCO Proceeding No. 864; thence, along the 

Northeasterly line of said “North Kentucky Partners Reorganization” the following two courses 

and distances:  

(2) North 00°00'08" West 30.00 feet;  

(3) thence North 39°36'52" West 2,789.70 feet to the most Northerly corner of said “North Kentucky 

Partners Reorganization”;  

(4) thence North 46°58'24" East 100.18 feet to Interstate 5 right-of-way; thence, along said Interstate 

5 right-of-way the following four courses and distances:  

(5) thence North 14°10'01" East 39.63 feet;  

(6) thence South 76°57'19" East 357.44 feet;  

(7) thence South 78°36'54" East 782.92 feet;  

(8) thence South 76°00'34" East 456.96 feet to an angle point in the 

Westerly line of the “Ventura Ranch Reorganization” LAFCO 

Proceeding No. 645; thence, along said “Ventura Ranch 

Reorganization” the following two courses and distances:  

 

 

 

____________________________  ____________ 
Matthew K. Souza   Date        

 

  

58

csimes
Stamp

csimes
Text Box
9-4-2024



 

  Page 2 of 2
   

 

 

 

(9) South 73°24'22" East 1,385.62 feet;  

(10) thence South 00°00'24" West 1,544.47 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  

 

Containing 87.987 acres of land, more or less. 

 

End of description. 

   

 

 

 

 

  

59



 

   

449-161 
September 4, 2024 

 

PIRMI AREA AND SPORTS PARK REORGANIZATION TO THE CITY OF 

WOODLAND 

SPORTS PARK 

THAT portion of real property situate in the County of Yolo, State of California, and being a 

portion of Section 4, Township 9 North, Range 2 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, being 

more particularly described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said 

Section 4, said point also being the Southeast corner the “Sievers & Prudler Reorganization”, 

LAFCO Proceeding No. 868, said point also being the Westerly terminus of Course 21 of the 

“Springlake Reorganization” LAFCO Proceeding No. 883, said point also being the Northeast 

corner of the “Woodland Community Center Reorganization” LAFCO Proceeding No. 887;  

 

(1) thence, from said POINT OF BEGINNING and along the South line of said Course 21 of said 

“Springlake Reorganization”, South 89°41'24" East 1,320.57 feet to the Northeast corner of the 

Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 4;  

(2) thence, leaving said South line and along the East line of said Northeast Quarter, South 

01°00'48" West 1,321.70 feet to the Southeast corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest 

Quarter of said Section 4;  

(3) thence, along the South line of said Northeast Quarter, North 89°38'53" West 1,320.01 feet to the 

Southeast corner of said LAFCO Proceeding No. 887;  

(4) thence, along the East line of said LAFCO Proceeding No. 887, North 00°59'23" East 1,320.72 feet 

to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  

 

Containing 40.043 acres of land, more or less. 

 

End of description. 

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________  ____________ 
Matthew K. Souza   Date 

60

csimes
Stamp

csimes
Text Box
9-4-2024



Attachment B – Annexation Area Prezoning and Location Exhibit 

Annexation Area Existing Yolo County 
Zoning 

Existing City of Woodland 
General Plan Designation 

City Prezoning 

PIRMI Heavy Industrial (I-H) Industrial (I)/Light Industrial 
Flex Overlay (IF);  
Public/Quasi-Public with 
Light Industrial Flex Overlay; 
One parcel of 8.75 acres 
designated as Flood Study 
Area (FS) 

Industrial (I)/Light 
Industrial Flex Overlay (IF); 
Public/Quasi-Public with 
Light Industrial Flex 
Overlay;  
One parcel of 8.75 acres 
designated as Flood Study 
Area (FSA) 

Sports Park Agricultural Intensive 
(A-N) 

Public/Quasi Public (PQP) Public/Quasi Public (PQP) 

Item 8-ATT B

61



TOPAZ WAY

R
U

B
Y

 W
A

Y

P
E

A
R

L 
W

A
Y

AR
LINGTONCIR

P
A

LM
 A

V
E

GARNET WAY

C
O

LE
 C

T

C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 C

T

CHURCHILL DOWNS AVE

SHILOH CT

N
 W

A
LN

U
T

 S
T

F
R

E
E

M
A

N
 S

T

P
R

IV
A

T E RD

HARTER AVE

§̈¦ 5

§̈¦ 5

N
 C

O
LL

E
G

E
S

T

N
 E

A
S

T
 S

T

KENTUCKY AVE E KENTUCKY AVE

3

4

11

1

7

9

6

12

10

5
2

8

Existing City Boundary

Proposed City Boundary

Annexation Parcel

®
Proposed Woodland City Limits

Annexation Parcels Exhibit
City of Woodland

County of Yolo, California
0 500 1,000250

Feet

1 027-340-037-000 8.75

2 027-340-033-000 11.76

3 027-340-038-000 9.14

4 027-340-035-000 10.8

5 027-340-034-000 3.4

6 027-340-027-000 8.51

7 027-340-005-000 3.1

8 027-340-022-000 1.5

9 027-340-008-000 4.94

10 027-340-010-000 2.96

11 027-340-039-000 2.8

12 027-340-020-000 8.81

Key Number APN Acres

62



M
A

T
M

O
R

 R
D

STORZ LN

DONNER WAY

LEMUS LN

RUGGLES LN

DIETZ LN

JUHL LN

B
O

U
N

D
S

 L
N

P
E

N
A

 L
N

S
IX

T
H

S
T

SHELLHAMMER DR

COX DR

E
S

T
R

A
D

A DR

CHARMACK CT

SIMPSON DR

S
IL

LS
 S

T

R
E

N
O

 S
T

S
H

E
R

M
A

N
S

T

C
O

X
P

L

P
E

A
R

T
C

T

BROWNELL ST

A
R

C
H

E
R

D
R

SPORTS PARK DR

S
A

N
D

O
V

A
L 

D
R

H
E

N
IG

A
N

 D
R

CARSON ST

ARRIAGA WAY

JO
N

E
S

 S
T

H
O

F
F

M
A

N
 S

T

B
LA

N
C

H
A

R
D

D
R

R
IC

H
IE

 L
N

HADLEY DR

COUNTY ROAD 24A

S
P

R
A

G
U

E
 D

RB
U

LL
O

C
K

 C
T

C
A

S
IA

S
 L

N

B
U

LL
O

C
K

 D
R

COUNTY ROAD 24B

NEWTON DR

WELCH ST

ROBERTS DR HUGHES ST

COUNTY ROAD 24C

E
A

S
T

 S
T

|ÿ113

|ÿ113

|ÿ113

1

Existing City Boundary

Proposed City Boundary

Annexation Parcel

®
Proposed Woodland City Limits

Annexation Parcels Exhibit
City of Woodland

County of Yolo, California
0 500 1,000250

Feet

1 041-080-002-000 40.04

Key Number APN Acres

63



September 6, 2024 

TO: Christine Crawford, LAFCo 

FROM: Tom Haynes, CFO 
By: Bowen Au Young 

SUBJECT: LAFCo 24-01 PIRMI Area and Sports Park Reorganization to the City of 
Woodland 

The LAFCo project referenced above will reorganize approximately 117.43 acres. If granted 
the parcel would be annexed into the City of Woodland boundaries and detach from the 
Springlake Fire Protection District.  

Per LAFCo, this proposal is subject to Section 99 of the Revenue and Taxation code.  
Pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code §99 and related subsections, the County 
Assessor’s Office provided the Department of Financial Services, in our role as Auditor-
Controller, with the tax rate areas of those properties located within the boundaries of the 
proposed LAFCo project.  Utilizing the Assessor’s information, the agencies included in the 
Tax Rate Area are shown on the enclosure. 

Pursuant to §99(b)(1)(B)3, the Auditor shall notify the government body of each local agency 
whose service area or service responsibility will be altered by the amount of, and allocation 
factors with respect to, property tax revenue estimated pursuant to §99(b)(2) that is subject 
to a negotiated exchange.   

Except as otherwise provided by law, pursuant to §99(b)(1)(B)(4), upon receipt of the 
enclosed estimates, the local agencies shall commence negotiations to determine the 
amount of property tax revenues to be exchanged between the local agencies.  This 

Item 8-ATT C

64



negotiation period shall not exceed 60 days.  The final exchange resolution shall specify 
how the annual tax increment shall be allocated in future years.  Note that the City of 
Woodland and Yolo County have already executed a tax exchange agreement for this 
proposal.    
 
Please do not hesitate to contact Alexander Tengolics in the County Administrator’s Office 
at (530) 666-8068 prior to the anticipated Board meeting with any concerns or questions 
about this determination.   
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
Bowen Au Young 
Department of Financial Services 
Property Tax Accounting Unit 
 

 
 

 
TH:BA 
 
Cc: Gerardo Pinedo, CAO 
       City of Woodland  
       Springlake Fire Protection District 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

65



 
LAFCo:            24-01 
Project Name: PIRMI Area and Sports Park                   

Reorganization to the City of Woodland 
R&T Code Section:          99 
Existing Tax Rate Area(s):         087-019, 087-046 
Net Assessed Value:                    45,161,486 
Estimated 1% Property Tax Revenue:    $451,614.86 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

APN TRA Acreage/SF Land Imps Fixtures PP Total  Exemption Total 
Value 

027-340-005 087-019  3.00   239,247   12,963   -     -     252,210   -     252,210  

027-340-008 087-019  4.96   744,967   1,209,777   -     -     1,954,744   -     1,954,744  

027-340-010 087-019  3.00   282,034   -     -     -     282,034   -     282,034  

027-340-020 087-019  9.89   1,484,629   6,324,799   19,029,480   3,514,140   30,353,048   -     30,353,048  

027-340-022 087-019  1.55   260,262   509,355   6,200   201,510   977,327   -     977,327  

027-340-027 087-019  8.50   135,304   -     -     -     135,304   -     135,304  

027-340-033 087-019  11.76   187,196   -     -     -     187,196   -     187,196  

027-340-034 087-019  3.38   244,292   809,620   -     -     1,053,912   -     1,053,912  

027-340-035 087-019  10.76   5,610,000   510,000   -     -     6,120,000   -     6,120,000  

027-340-037 087-019  9.00   1,372,000   378,000   -     -     1,750,000   -     1,750,000  

027-340-038 087-019  8.94   794,998   -     -     -     794,998   -     794,998  

027-340-039 087-019  2.69   272,223   332,362   -     -     604,585   -     604,585  

          

 
 
 

AGENCY NAME 
County General Fund 
County ACO Fund 
County Library 
City of Woodland 
County Road District #2 
Springlake Fire Protection District 
Sacto-Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control 
Yolo County Resources Conservation District 
Yolo County Flood Control District 
Yolo County Office of Education  
Woodland Joint Unified School District  
Yuba Community College 
 

66



 
 
Table continued from prior page… 

APN TRA Acreage/SF Land Imps Fixtures PP Total  Exemption Total 
Value 

041-080-002 087-046  40.00   696,128   -     -     -     696,128   -     696,128  

Secured Total   117.43   12,323,280  10,086,876  19,035,680  3,715,650  45,161,486  -     45,161,486 

 
Listed below are the existing agencies in the 1% tax rate in tax rate area 087-019 
 
 Pre ERAF Before % Of Factor Post ERAF After 

Agency DISTRIB% ERAF Shift to ERAF DISTRIB% ERAF 
County General Fund 0.34300272  152,517.39  0.6575421 0.117463995   52,230.79  

County ACO Fund 0.01405812  6,250.99   0.014058120   6,250.99  

County Library 0.03186750  14,170.00  0.3406287 0.021012514   9,343.29  

County Road District #2 0.02498988  11,111.84  0.1037848 0.022396311   9,958.60  

Springlake Fire District 0.08008691  35,610.93  0.0822308 0.073501299   32,682.62  

Sacto-Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control 0.00988500  4,395.40   0.009885000   4,395.40  

Yolo County Flood Control District 0.01165057  5,180.47  0.3814253 0.007206748   3,204.51  

County Schools 0.03550804  15,788.78   0.035508040   15,788.78  

Woodland Joint Unified School District 0.37137420  165,132.87   0.371374200   165,132.87  

Yuba Community College 0.07757706  34,494.92   0.077577060   34,494.92  

ERAF    0.250016714   111,170.83  

Total 1.0000000 444,653.58  1.0000000 444,653.58 
 
Listed below are the proposed agencies in the 1% tax rate in the proposed new tax rate area. 
 
    Post ERAF After 

Agency Name    DISTRIB% ERAF 
County General Fund  -     -     -    0.058731997  26,115.39  

County ACO Fund  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

City of Woodland  -     -     -    0.189700240  84,350.89  

County Library  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

County Road District #2  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

Springlake Fire District  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

Sacto-Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control  -     -     -    0.009885000  4,395.40  

Yolo County Flood Control District  -     -     -    0.007206748  3,204.51  

County Schools  -     -     -    0.035508040  15,788.78  

Woodland Joint Unified School District  -     -     -    0.371374200  165,132.87  

Yuba Community College  -     -     -    0.077577060  34,494.92  

ERAF 
   

0.25001671  111,170.83  

Total    1.0000000 444,653.58 
 
 
 
 

67



 
Listed below are the existing agencies in the 1% tax rate in tax rate area 087-046 
 
 Pre ERAF Before % Of Factor Post ERAF After 

Agency DISTRIB% ERAF Shift to ERAF DISTRIB% ERAF 
      

County General Fund 0.34284231  2,386.62  0.65754209 0.117409061   817.32  

County ACO Fund 0.01405155  97.82  
 

0.014051550   97.82  

County Library 0.03185259  221.73  0.34062874 0.021002682   146.21  

County Road District #2 0.0249782  173.88  0.10378479 0.022385843   155.83  

Springlake Fire District 0.08004945  557.25  0.08223081 0.073466919   511.42  

Sacto-Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control 0.00988038  68.78  
 

0.009880380   68.78  

Yolo County Resources Conservation Dist. 0.00046765  3.26  0.2766692 0.000338266   2.35  

Yolo County Flood Control District 0.01164512  81.06  0.38142526 0.007203377   50.14  

County Schools 0.03549144  247.07  
 

0.035491440   247.07  

Woodland Joint Unified School District 0.37120053  2,584.03  
 

0.371200530   2,584.03  

Yuba Community College 0.07754078  539.78  
 

0.077540780   539.78  

ERAF 
   

0.250029172   1,740.52  

Total 1.0000000 6,961.28  1.0000000 6,961.28 
 
Listed below are the proposed agencies in the 1% tax rate in the proposed new tax rate area. 
 
    Post ERAF After 

Agency Name    DISTRIB% ERAF 
      

County General Fund  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

County ACO Fund  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

City of Woodland  -     -     -    0.248316055  1,728.60  

County Library  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

County Road District #2  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

Springlake Fire District  -     -     -    0.000000000  -    

Sacto-Yolo Mosquito & Vector Control  -     -     -    0.009880380  68.78  
Yolo County Resources Conservation 
District 

 -     -     -    0.000338266  2.35  

Yolo County Flood Control District  -     -     -    0.007203377  50.14  

County Schools  -     -     -    0.035491440  247.07  

Woodland Joint Unified School District  -     -     -    0.371200530  2,584.03  

Yuba Community College  -     -     -    0.077540780  539.78  

ERAF  -     -     -    0.25002917  1,740.52  

Total    1.0000000 6,961.28 
 
 
After review, there is a property tax loss or exchange between agencies for the subject property.  A 
new tax rate area will be necessary to accomplish the proposed annexation.   

68



  
  Regular    Regular    7. 7.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 10/31/2024  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Study session to discuss the reorganization plan for the Elkhorn Fire Protection District (no action will be taken)

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Receive staff presentation, accept public comment, and provide input as desired. 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The Elkhorn Fire Protection District (FPD) submitted its application for dissolution on September 26, 2024, following
the LAFCo meeting where a fee waiver was granted. The application was limited to dissolution only, knowing that
LAFCo has the power to amend proposals and could determine the most appropriate method to reorganize the
provision of services in the FPD territory.

The attached briefing materials illustrate the current staff recommended approach to reorganizing the Elkhorn FPD,
with Woodland and West Sacramento's fire departments providing fire protection services. Of note, rather than
dissolving the FPD, staff recommends that the FPD be kept intact, but directly governed by the Board of
Supervisors, and that its territory be limited to the West Sacramento service territory. Under this approach,
Woodland's service territory would be annexed into the Springlake FPD. Staff will walk through the proposed
changes and look forward to hearing any Commission feedback.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT A-Elkhorn FPD Reorg Proposal Map & Process Chart

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 10/22/2024 01:37 PM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 10/22/2024 11:02 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/22/2024

69



70



Item 7-ATT A

71



72



Elkhorn FPD Reorganization Process Chart 

  
 

 

  

Elkhorn Dissolution 
Application Submitted      

Sep 26, 2024

•LAFCo sets up working 
group and regular meetings

•LAFCo determine district 
boundary changes to 
propose (to work towards 
in application process, i.e. 
not final) which defines the 
"affected territory" for 
application purposes

•Correspondingly, LAFCo will 
need to add SOI 
Amendment and 
Annexations to application.

•LAFCo study session 
10/31/2024 to check in on 
governance approach 
before developing plan, 
contracts, and analysis.

LAFCo Routes 
Reorganization Application

•LAFCo routes to affected 
agencies (Springlake FPD 
can request termination of 
annexation if desired)

•Assessor determines 
property valuation

•Auditor determines portion 
of 1% property taxes that 
would be exchanged 
(provides info for financing 
new services) 

•BOS consults and 
negotiates proposed tax 
exchange on behalf of 
districts (not binding if 
boundary changes don't go 
through)

LAFCo Prepares Plan for 
Services

•Description/enumeration 
of new fire services (level of 
service, etc.)

•Any improvements or 
upgrades required

•Total estimated cost to 
provide the new services to 
affected territory

•Plan for financing new 
services

•Fiscal impact to remainder 
of Elkhorn (and 
Springlake/CSA 9) 
customers

•Potential fiscal impact to 
existing customers

•Consideration of any 
alternatives

•Timing of new services

County/Cities Negotiate Fire 
Service Contracts

•County negotiates 
proposed contracts with 
cities on behalf of Elkhorn 
and Springlake FPDs.

•Cities either (i) get approval 
from cities’ fire 
associations, or (ii) provide 
copy of contract to fire 
associations w/ 30 days’ 
notice before hearing.

•Cities public hearing to 
authorize city managers to 
sign contracts for extended 
fire services subject to 
LAFCo ordering the 
Reorganization.

Independent Fiscal Analysis

•LAFCo hires consultant
•Review plan for services
•Comparison of existing 

provider to other services
•Determines if sufficient 

revenue to provide services 
for at least 3 FYs (LAFCo can 
condition agency payments 
or assessments to provide 
sufficient revenue)

These steps can occur in tandem 

See next page 

73



 

 

 

Definitions: 

56014. "Affected local agency" means any local agency that contains, or would contain, or whose sphere of influence contains or would contain, any territory for which a change 
of organization is proposed or ordered, either singularly or as part of a reorganization or for which a study is to be reviewed by the commission. 

56015. "Affected territory" means any territory for which a change of organization, reorganization, or sphere of influence change is proposed or ordered, or any territory to which 
services are proposed to be provided. 

56073. "Reorganization" means two or more changes of organization contained within a single proposal. 

LAFCo Certificate of Filing

•Once EO has determined 
the application is complete 
with all these previous 
items, schedule hearing 
within 90 days.

•At least 21 days prior to 
hearing, Executive Officer 
gives notice to each affected 
local agency, county, mailed 
notices to landowners and 
registered voters within 
affected territory +300' 
radius, and anyone who 
filed a written request, and 
publishes notice in 
newspaper and LAFCo 
website.

LAFCo Hearing

•Commission consideration 
of reorganization (i.e. 
dissolution, annexation, and 
extended services) [districts 
receiving new territory need 
to be in agreement]

•LAFCo determines if the 
affected territory is 
expected to receive 
sufficient revenue and 
reasonable reserve for at 
least three FYs post contract 
start date. If insufficient 
revenues, LAFCo may 
condition approval on 
concurrent approval of 
sufficient revenue sources.

LAFCo Annexation Protest 
Process/Hearing

•Executive Officer must set 
protest hearing within 35 
days, hearing must occur 21-
60 days from set date, and 
not during 30-day 
reconsderation period

•Notices published and 
mailed to all landowners 
and registered voters in 
"affected territory" (i.e. 
areas of change)

•LAFCo meeting to count 
protest and determine 
results:

•0-24% orders reorganization
•25%-49% triggers election
•50% + terminates 

proposal/reorg
•If reorg goes through, LAFCo 

adopts a resolution which 
will set timing/effective date 
of changeover, plus any 
conditions that must be met 
first (i.e. service contracts, 
payments, etc.)

LAFCo Certificate of 
Completion

•Issued by Executive Officer 
once all terms and 
conditions are met.

•Documents recorded and 
filed with Board of 
Equalization to change 
agency boundaries and Tax 
Rate Areas (TRAs)

•Change goes into effect, per 
effective date set in 
resolution.

74



  
  Regular    Regular    8. 8.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 10/31/2024  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
Consider and adopt the Yolo LAFCo 2025 Meeting Calendar

RECOMMENDED ACTIONRECOMMENDED ACTION
Consider and adopt the Yolo LAFCo 2025 Meeting Calendar.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTIONREASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION
The intent of an annual calendar is to provide the Commission with an overview of the year and consideration of
events that affect meeting dates, and to set the regular meeting dates for the year.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
Staff has considered meeting dates as set by Yolo LAFCo Administrative Policies and Procedures; impact of
holidays; CALAFCO events; county and city association annual events; and, traditional break periods for meetings.
Given these considerations, the attached calendar proposes an overview of anticipated LAFCo meetings for the
2025 calendar year. This calendar does not preclude the call for special meetings as needed or cancellation of
meetings, if appropriate.

Please note there are three months where we need to make modifications to our normal schedule as listed below.
Please bring your calendars to the meeting for discussionPlease bring your calendars to the meeting for discussion. 

The regular April LAFCo meeting date coincides with the CSAC Legislative Conference. For this reason, staff
suggests moving the April meeting to TuesdayTuesday , the 22nd.
The regular October meeting date coincides with the CALAFCO Conference and staff recommends moving the
October meeting to Thursday, the 30th.
The regular December meeting date coincides with the CSAC Annual Meeting. Therefore, staff suggests
moving the December meeting to FridayFriday , the 12th (or Thursday, the 11th, in the afternoon).

All meeting date changes will still be at the regularly scheduled time of 9:00 a.m.

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT-2025 LAFCo meeting calendar

Form ReviewForm Review
InboxInbox Reviewed ByReviewed By DateDate
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 10/22/2024 09:47 AM
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 10/22/2024 08:00 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/22/2024

75



76



Yolo LAFCo 2025 Meeting Calendar 

JANUARY  

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

APRIL 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30  

JULY 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31  

OCTOBER 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

FEBRUARY 

S M T W T F S 

  1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28  

MAY 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

AUGUST 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

31  

NOVEMBER 

S M T W T F S 

  1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30  

MARCH 

S M T W T F S 

  1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30 31  

JUNE 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30  

SEPTEMBER 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30  

DECEMBER 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31  

MEETING CALENDAR EVENTS CSAC Legislative Conference (Apr 23-25) 

Yolo LAFCo Meetings Cap to Cap (May 3-7) 

County Holidays NACo Annual Conference (Jul 11-14) 

CALAFCO Staff Workshop (Apr 30-May 2) RCRC Annual Meeting (Sep 17-19) 

CALAFCO Conference-San Diego (Oct 22-24) League of Cities Conference (Oct 8-10) 

CSAC Annual Meeting (Dec 1-5) 

Item 8-ATT

77



78



  
  Executive Officer Report    Executive Officer Report    9. 9.             

LAFCOLAFCO
Meeting Date:Meeting Date: 10/31/2024  

InformationInformation
SUBJECTSUBJECT
A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update of staff activity for the
month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request that action be taken on any item listed.  

a.  10.31.2024 Long Rnage Planning Calendar 

b.  EO Activity Report - September 23 through October 25, 2024 

c.  CALAFCO Legislative Summary

AttachmentsAttachments
ATT a-10.31.2024 Long Range Planning Calendar
ATT b-EO Activity Report Sep23-Oct25
ATT c-10.31.2024 CALAFCO Legislative Summary

Form ReviewForm Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 10/22/2024 08:48 AM
Final Approval Date: 10/22/2024

79



80



Long Range Meeting Calendar – Tentative Items 

October 31, 2024  

Meeting Date Tentative Agenda Items 
Dec 5, 2024 
(potentially 

cancel?) 

• Determine comprehensive MSR/SOI for City of Woodland is not necessary

• FY 24/25 Q1 Financial Update

Jan 2025 • Approve contracts for Elkhorn Reorganization Plan for Services and/or
Fiscal Analysis (tentative)

• 2024 Local Agency Website Transparency Report

• FY 24/25 Q2 Financial Update

Feb 2025 • LAFCo Audit FYs 2022, 2023, and 2024

• Consider and adopt LAFCo Annual Work Plan for Fiscal Year 2025/26

• Elect Chair & Vice Chair

Mar 2025 • Adopt Draft LAFCo Budget for FY2025/26

• Cemetery Services MSR/SOI (6 districts) (placeholder)

Apr 2025 • Sac-Yolo Port District MSR/SOI (placeholder)

May 2025 • YECA JPA Service Review (dispatch agency) (placeholder)

Jun 2025 • YCPARMIA JPA Service Review (risk management pool) (placeholder)

New Applications Received Since Last Meeting 

Date Received Application Name 
09/26/2024 Elkhorn FPD Reorganization 

Item 9-ATT a

81



82



LAFCo EO Activity Report 
September 23 through October 25, 2024 

Date Meeting/Milestone Comments 
09/23/2024 Meeting w/Renee Croswell (Human Resources) Recruitment 

09/24/2024 Meeting w/Pamela Miller Meeting packet review 

09/24/2024 Meeting w/Tania Garcia-Cadena Meeting packet review 

09/25/2024 Meeting w/Chief Eric Zane & Wes Arvin Board Member 
(Springlake FPD) & Dotty Pritchard (Chief of Staff to Supervisor 
Sandy) 

Elkhorn FPD dissolution 

09/25/2024 Meeting w/ Chair Bill Biasi LAFCo agenda review 

09/25/2024 Meeting w/Oscar Villegas Meeting packet review 

09/30/2024 CALAFCO Board Special Meeting Changes to the CALAFCO Legislative 
Committee 

10/01/2024 Meeting w/Megan Meier (City of Woodland) Appeal process and next steps for PIRMI & 
Sports Park Reorganization (LAF#24-01) 

10/03/2024 Meeting w/Counsel Eric May PIRMI Reorganization and Elkhorn FPD 
Update 

10/09/2024 Meeting w/Counsel Eric May and Special Counsel Michael 
Colantuono 

Elkhorn FPD Reorganization 

10/10/2024 Meeting w/Woodland City Manager Ken Hiatt MSR/SOI Update 

10/10/2024 Webinar: Navigating the 'E-Word' across Conservative 
Landscapes: The Quiet Controversy of ‘Equity’ in Planning 

Attended 

10/10/2024 Meeting w/Bill Mattos & Ammy Reyes (Elkhorn FPD Board) & 
Dotty Pritchard (Chief of Staff to Supervisor Sandy) 

Elkhorn FPD-LAFCo Process 

10/10/2024 Meeting w/Ivy Donavan Woodland Annexation 

10/11/2024 Meeting w/Counsel Eric May and Special Counsel Michael 
Colantuono 

Elkhorn FPD Reorganization 

Oct16-18/2024 CALAFCO Conference - Yosemite Attended 

10/21/2024 Meeting w/Counsel Eric May and Special Counsel Michael 
Colantuono 

Elkhorn FPD Reorganization 

10/21/2024 Meeting w/Oscar Villegas Upcoming Sac-Yolo Port District MSR 

10/23/2024 Meeting w/Dirk Brazil (Acting CAO) Elkhorn FPD Reorganization 

10/23/2024 Meeting w/Stephanie Cormier (Chief Asst. Director, Community 
Services Dept.) 

Community Services District (CSD) 
consolidation project 

10/23/2024 Springlake FPD Meeting Presentation on Elkhorn FPD Reorg Process 

Item 9-ATT b

83



Date Meeting/Milestone Comments 
10/24/2024 Meeting w/ BOS Ad Hoc Fire Sustainability Subcommittee 

(Supervisors Provenza & Barajas, County Administrative Staff) 
Elkhorn FPD Reorganization 

10/24/2024 South Davis General Plan City Advisory Meeting Presentation Regarding Annexation Process 
(in general) 

 

84



CALAFCO Legislative Summary 
October 31, 2024, LAFCo Meeting 

August 31st was the last day for the legislature to pass bills and it is now in recess. The governor had until 
September 30th to sign or veto bills passed. CALAFCO tracked 10 pieces of proposed legislation, two of 
which were sponsored by CALAFCO: 

• AB 3277 (CALAFCO’s omnibus bill) was signed by the Governor.

• SB 1209 was signed by the Governor and contains important indemnification protections for
LAFCos.

Additional bills of potential Yolo LAFCo interest include: 

• AB 805 (Arambula D) This bill was signed by the Governor. This bill provides administrative,
financial, and technical assistance to help address and correct sewer system failures in
disadvantaged communities. CALAFCO took a “watch” position. This bill may be potentially
valuable for Yolo LAFCo if disadvantaged community wastewater systems fail to maintain
adequate service.

• AB 2302 (Addis D) This bill was signed by the Governor. This bill will enact changes to Brown Act
provisions that allow members of legislative bodies to teleconference for meetings. Currently, the 
law limits teleconferencing to no more than 3 consecutive months, 20% of the regular meetings
in a calendar year, or 2 meetings for bodies that meet less than 10 times in a calendar year. This
bill redefines those limits as 2 meetings per year for bodies meeting monthly or less; 5 meetings
per year for those meeting twice per month; or 7 meetings per year if the body meetings three
times or more per month. CALAFCO took a “watch” position.

Please see the attached CALAFCO List of Current Bills dated 10/22/2024. 

The 2025/26 legislative session convenes on December 2, 2024. 

Item 9-ATT c

85



�����������	�
������	������������������ ������ ���������������� ����!�"�#�$���$!��	�%�$�"
�����	���&����� ����	�'�(	#�)*+,-./.01�234534645���*-78���,09� :�	
$�"�$#�43;<3464<� ���	�����$#�=3=34645� �	�	��#�234534645>)*+,-./.0�?@�A.B/.-+/@�C9�A-+-.�>�)*+,-./�D6DE�A-+-F-.G�C9�4645� �
"�	�
�#�234534645>HI�)JHKLMNMO� O.GPKC8QB@RQGB+8R8CC/O.GPKC8QB@RQGB+8R8CC/)CS9I)CSBIMS/C88.0 T.-C.0 �U�V	��$;G-�JCFG. 4S0�JCFG.� �����W#�L*.�A-+-.�X+-./�N.GCF/B.G�)CS-/C8�YC+/0�+S0�-*.�2�)+8Q9C/SQ+�/.ZQCS+8�[+-./�\F+8Q-@BCS-/C8�?C+/0G�/.ZF8+-.�[+-./�\F+8Q-@�QS�+BBC/0+SB.�[Q-*�-*.�KC/-./>)C8CZS.�X+-./�]F+8Q-@�)CS-/C8HB-�+S0�-*.�9.0./+8�)8.+S�X+-./�HB-I�)F//.S-�8+[�+F-*C/Q̂.G�+�/.ZQCS+8�?C+/0�-C�C/0./�-*.�,/C_QGQCSC9�G.[./�G./_QB.�?@�+�/.B.Q_QSZ�G.[./�G@G-.7E�+G�0.9QS.0E�-C�+�0QG+0_+S-+Z.0�BC77FSQ-@�G./_.0�?@+S�QS+0.\F+-.�CSGQ-.�G.[+Z.�-/.+-7.S-�G@G-.7E�+G�0.9QS.0I�L*QG�?Q88�[CF80�+F-*C/Q̂.�-*.�G-+-.?C+/0E�FS-Q8�̀+SF+/@�;E�4642E�+S0�+9-./�Q-�7+P.G�+�G,.BQ9Q.0�9QS0QSZ�C/�9QS0QSZG�?@�/.GC8F-QCSE�-C/.\FQ/.�+�0.GQZS+-.0�G.[./�G@G-.7�-C�BCS-/+B-�[Q-*�+S�+07QSQG-/+-C/�0.GQZS+-.0�C/�+,,/C_.0�?@�-*.G-+-.�?C+/0�9C/�+07QSQG-/+-Q_.E�-.B*SQB+8E�C,./+-QCS+8E�8.Z+8E�C/�7+S+Z./Q+8�G./_QB.G�-C�+GGQG-�+0.GQZS+-.0�G.[./�G@G-.7�[Q-*�-*.�0.8Q_./@�C9�+0.\F+-.�G.[./�G./_QB.E�+G�0.9QS.0I� � � a
��	�
�� � � � �� � � X+-B*� � � � �� � ���������
����	�#��2345346451�AQZS.0�?@�-*.�bC_./SC/E�+S0�B*+,-./.0�?@�-*.�A.B/.-+/@�C9A-+-.I23D346451�K/.G.S-.0�-C�-*.�bC_./SC/�+-�5�,I7Ic34d346451�N.B.Q_.0�HGG.7?8@�BCSBF//.SB.e�-C�MSZ/CGGQSZ�+S0�MS/C88QSZIc34d346451�HGG.7?8@�NF8.�dd�GFG,.S0.0I�f/Z.SB@�B8+FG.�+0C,-.0Ic34d3451�AB*.0F8.0�9C/�BCSBF//.SB.Ic34=3451�N.+0�-*Q/0�-Q7.IL*Q/0�A.S+-.�/.+0QSZ�/.GB*.0F8.0�-C�c34=34645Ic34<3451�L*Q/0�/.+0QSZ�*+0�?..S�/.GB*.0F8.0�-C�c34434645�?F-�[+G�SC-�/.+0I�gC�S.[�0+-.�@.-GB*.0F8.0IL*Q/0�/.+0QSZ�/.GB*.0F8.0�-C�c34;34645Ic3;2346451�N.+0�9C/�A.BCS0�-Q7.�QS�A.S+-.I�AB*.0F8.0�9C/�-*Q/0�/.+0QSZ�CS�c34634645Ic3;D346451�K+GG.0�CF-�C9�H,,/C,/Q+-QCSGI=34534645�N.9.//.0�-C�H,,/C,/Q+-QCSG�GFG,.SG.�9Q8.I=3D346451�K+GG.0�A.S+-.�MS_Q/CS7.S-+8�]F+8Q-@�)C77Q--..�+S0�/.>/.9.//.0�-C�H,,/C,/Q+-QCSG�0F.�-C/.B.S-�+7.S07.S-GID3;D346451�H7.S0.0I�gC[�,/C_Q0.G�+07QSQG-/+-Q_.E�9QS+SBQ+8E�+S0�-.B*SQB+8�+GGQG-+SB.�-C�*.8,+00/.GG�+S0�BC//.B-�G.[./�G@G-.7�9+Q8F/.G�C/�C-*./�/.ZF8+-C/@�SCS>BC7,8Q+SB.�.h*Q?Q-.0�?@�.hQG-QSZQS9/+G-/FB-F/.ID3;346451�HGGQZS.0�-C�A.S+-.�MS_Q/CS7.S-+8�]F+8Q-@�BC77Q--..I�gC�*.+/QSZ�0+-.�@.-�GB*.0F8.0I;34=346451�AF,,C/-E�Q9�+7.S0.0E�+,,/C_.0I�H7.S07.S-�/.\F.G-.0�QG�-*.�QSB8FGQCS�C9�8+SZF+Z./.\FQ/QSZ�-*.�G-+-.�?C+/0�-C�BCSGF8-�[Q-*�-*.�8CB+8�iHR)jI;344346451�bF--.0�+S0�+7.S0.0I�gC�8CSZ./�+00/.GG.G�BCSGC8Q0+-QCS�C9�[+G-.�[+-./�G@G-.7G�?F-E/+-*./E�[CF80�G.-�F,�+�,/CZ/+7�QS�[*QB*�-*.�G-+-.�[CF80�,/C_Q0.�-.B*SQB+8E�7+S+Z./Q+8E+07QSQG-/+-Q_.E�+S0�9QS+SBQ+8�+GGQG-+SB.E�[*./.�+,,8QB+?8.E�-C�0QG+0_+S-+Z.0�BC77FSQ-Q.GI�KCGQ-QCSB*+SZ.0�-C�GF,,C/-�Q9�+7.S0.0�-C�QSB8F0.�+�,/C_QGQCS�/.\FQ/QSZ�-*.�G-+-.�?C+/0�-C�BCSGF8-�[Q-*�-*.8CB+8�iHR)j�/.Z+/0QSZ�-*.�G@G-.7IHG�QS-/C0FB.0E�-*QG�?Q88�[CF80�*+_.�+F-*C/Q̂.0�-*.�G-+-.�?C+/0E�Q9�GF99QBQ.S-�9FS0G�+/.�+_+Q8+?8.E�-CC/0./�BCSGC8Q0+-QCS�C9�G.[./�G./_QB.�+8CSZ�[Q-*�+S�C/0./�C9�BCSGC8Q0+-QCS�C9�0/QSPQSZ�[+-./�G@G-.7G[*.S�?C-*�C9�-*.�/.B.Q_QSZ�+S0�GF?GF7.0�[+-./�G@G-.7G�,/C_Q0.�G.[./�G./_QB.�+S0�+9-./�-*.�G-+-.?C+/0�.SZ+Z.G�QS�B./-+QS�+B-Q_Q-Q.GI�k-�9+Q8.0�-C�7..-�464<�0.+08QS.G�+S0�?.B+7.�+�4�@.+/�?Q88�-*+-B+SSC-�?.�+B-.0�F,CS�FS-Q8�̀+SF+/@E�4645I�� �����l �a�"U�"
�������V������	��%�#�	���"
�����"��%#������$��W��
$W&����� ����	�'�(	#�H7.S0.01�D34234645���*-78���,09� :�	
$�"�$#�43;<3464<� ���	�����$#�D34234645

mnoppopqr�msmt�uv wxyz{|w}~�x��x�}w�|w��o~�{��wo~�{����|}�~������m{p�ppm���p��q�p���m���}zq{zw�����n

�xx~�soowxyz{|w}~�x��x�}w�|w��o~�{��wo~�{����|}�~������m{p�ppm���p��q�p���m���}zq{zw�����n mo�86



� ���������	
	
�
������������������������������������� !��"!#��$������%������&���$#�'()#���*	�	
�
�!� +,-��.,/���	
	
�
�0#��12�� ���34���%5���%����������367�8 ���%�������9��:#9��%#1������� )����� 9;�����������<���� 
���<����� ��==�>?��@;������;�A#�B��&��2%�C���D�����C�&��;����%�:�����E%�������C���%;���F������G�� ��5��:����%����F��%5�������G��������%���:��;����H���������%��:���������F�����H�����F����������F����%��������F��� ���:�F����������%���������:���%;����H��:� ����������� ��������%���#�9���������&���;���I����;����F������G�� ��5��:�����%����F��%5����������������������%��:����%��F����G������������F�����%���H����������:��H��F��%5���H��F��%5����G������!����C�������J�����5��C�
�
�C����%������%��%�H����%���������������;�������%�����H�H ����:������������D����H��:�����H�H ���������%������:��H�����F������;5��%�����%�������;���������������;���� ��%��������������&��;����;���F��%5K��L������%����������;�����D����H���������H��������H��F��%5����G������!#�9���������&��H��������::�������D����H�����:�������%�C��F����C������� ��%������%�������C��������%�� ��C�&;�������F������G�� ��5�������F���������������%��:����%��F����G������#�@;������H��F��%5����G��������H�����������%����������H���������%�������� 5���H�H ����:��;����F������G�� ��5�������D������;����F������G�� ��5�������G������%�:�%�H����� 5�&;�%;��;���� ��%�H�5���H����5�;��������G������5�� ���G���;��H�����F#�@;��� ���C������J�����5��C�
�
�C�&��������;���I������ ������5� ��5C������:����C����������H��������������G�����%��:����%��F����G�����������&������H�������D����H�����:�������%�C��F����C������� ��%�����%�������C��������%�� ��#�@;�� ����&�������D���������������������::�H�H ����:��;����%����F��%5��� �������������������F���������H��5��;5��%���H�����F���%�����������F��;��H�����F#�@;�� ����&������D������;����%����F��%5����������;���F���������;�����H��5��;5��%���H�����F���%�����#�@;�� ����&������D������;��H�H �����:��;���� ������5� ��5����G��� �5�����������%�H���������F��;����������������:��H�����F��;�������� ��%�5��%%���� ���G����;����������������;��������������:��HC�������%�:���#�@;�� ���&������������D������;���� ������5� ��5�����������H�H ����:��;���� ������5� ��5�&;�������%���������������%��:����%��H�����F�:��H�����H������%����������;��H��������:��;��H�����F#�M������������������%��:����%��F��������������;����%�C��;�� ����&�������D������;����F������G�� ��5��;������� ���;����;��� ������5� ��5� 5�%;�����C��������%�C�����������C������;���:��H����%��������H�3�����%�:����:�����F� 5�H�L����5�G���C� �:�����;���� ������5� ��5����������%��:����%��F�:����;��:�������H�������G��5��
H���;���;����:���#� � � N,�.�.,/� � � � �� � � O��%;� � � � �� � PQ+QRPS�P,==7/������	
	
�
�T����������	
	
�
��:���:�����F����H�����;��J��5�������������C�&;�%;&����;���������5�:�������%5�%�HH����������H��������������� ����#�	*	
�
�T�9���������� 5�0������$�%���'�G���H����9�HH����������:�����C�&��;���%������������F������#�	
*	
�
�T�A�G��������:��;��2���H �5�����&�������F�������0������$�%���'�G���H����9�HH����������;��0������J���%���5�9�HH�����#�	��	
�
�T�2H���������������0������������:�J�����5��C�
�
�#"	��	
�
"T�@;�� ����&����H�������������3����%�:�%���5��������%��:����%���H�����F���:��� ������5 �����C���:���������� ��5��;������G����E%����G��5���������G����5�%���%��5C���������������;���I�������3��:������%����������F��������C���F��������C�%�����%��C���%�����C����H���C������5���;����������H����#����D����:5��F� �����C��;��� ����&�������H�G���;����D����H����������������F���������;����%�������:�;���� ������5� ��5�H�H ���&;��&��������%������F�:��H��::���������G����F��;����;����F������G�� ��5�;���:��H����;���� ������5� ��5�;������G�����5�H����:�����F�������F��;�������%��:����%���H�����F��:��;���� ������5� ��5�&�������;��%���� ��%��%%���C�����&��������H�����;�������%�����C����������������G�����5��:��;���� ������5� ��5#�@;�������������F������G�� ��5�&���������������G������;��H�����������������;����:�����F��G��5��
�H���;���;����:���#�@;��� ������������::��H���;�����;������G��������:�;��B��&��2%�����������%� �������� ������5� �����#����������H��������������������&���
�5���� �����;���%������ ���%���������������J�����5C�
�
�#�� QU�VWV XP,//,YY?�6Z��������./�[Y7�\>,�/8]��7>�=�/�\7=7/���=�/�\78�]7�Y�/8�̂����� P�>>7/��_7̀ ���)�����T�a	
*	
�
����;�H������:� b/�>,8�-78��
	�"	
�
"� +����Q=7/8��c	
�	
�
�� ��������a	
*	
�
�)������ 5�'�G�����#� +,-��.,/��a	
*	
�
�2#�)1@(1�� ���34���%5���%����������34���%5���%�������9��:#9��%#1������� d7�,78 9;�����������<���� 
���<����� P�Y7/8�>�����	
a	
�
���e�*��2001AB$f�)1@(1�

ghijjijkl�gmgn�op qrstuvqwxyrz{r|wq}vqz~ix�u{yqix�u{y��vw�x��y���guj�jjg���j��k�j���g���wtkutq�����h

�rrx�miiqrstuvqwxyrz{r|wq}vqz~ix�u{yqix�u{y��vw�x��y���guj�jjg���j��k�j���g���wtkutq�����h ji�87



� ���������	
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��
 ��������� !������"���������"��
��#�!���������$�%�����&���������������������������������������������������"�!������������������������������������������"�!����'�(��!������!���$���)�*������������$�����+������������$���!�!������$��
�����)�	
����������������+��������$�����������$���!�!������$��
�����'�����������
��������,���������������-�����,������������"��������"����)-� � � ./0121/3� � � � �� � � 4��������
������� � � � �� � 5676859�5/��:320���;<=><=?=@A�B�������"���+�����);<C?<=?=@A�D�������������
����+���������@AE?�!)�)F<=F<=?=@A�&����+����������"�����������G����H��������������H��������)F<=I<=@A�&�����
������������������������J�����������")	
����������������
���������F<=I<=?=@)�������	
����&�����������
���������F<=K<=?=@)F<==<=@A���
������$����
�����������������������)�4�����������"��)F<=C<=@A�&���������������'�����������������
�����������)F<=?<=?=@A�&�����
���������������������������$�������"������+������������
�������
��������$�(�������'���������������J�$�����������������)F<C;<=@A�&���
���������F<=?<=?=@�$���	
�����������)F<CE<=@A���+���������F<CE<=@�L��������������������
������������+���������������������)�4����
������$����������	
����&����������F<C;<=@)F<C><=@A���
������$�����������������&������)F<?><=@A�4���
�������������
����������!!��!������������F<C=<=?=@'��
�����+���������������L����)I<?C<=@A�&���������������������������)�&� ��$����������!!��!����������
������������
������$��
����������F<><=?=@)K<=><=@A�D����������$��������*������������4������&������������%��������
�����������'������ ��$����������!!��!��������)C<=;<=@A�D�������������"�L�����������+���������������������
������$���!����"�
������)C<CF<=@A�D����������$��������"��!!��!���������*��������)C<CC<=@A����������������J��!��+������������������������������"��������"���������+��������+�����������������������!�+������������������������������"���������)�4���!��+���������������������
��������
��������
�+���
���$$�����$����+��������$��
���(����������'������M����"�C'�=?=F'�������������"��������"���������+���������+�������������������$����!���������!�����������!!�"������)��$����M����"�C'�=?=F'��
���!��+������������������
�������������+�������J�����������������������
����
�����+����)C<;<=@A�D�������������"�%����'�D��J������&����������*��������)@<CI<=?=EA��������������$��������������������������������������(������$�����(�������C?I=K)@�N�ON@O)��������%�����*������������C?IE?)=��������������������������$���'������������%�����*�����������C?IEE�����������������������������������"�!����)L�����������J���!����!����"��������������������������������������������!��������M����"�=?=@)������������'������������$���������$�����������%�������'������������������"��������"�������%�����*������������C?I=C)�� 6P�QRSQ T6UU10�VW���9X:3��::213Y0��Z/[�Z��Y:3[1:0��2:Z:[/3\:�:3[:0]����� 5���:32�̂:_2��*
�!�����A�;<==<=?=@���
������!�$� 3̀2�/U�[:U��=<C=<=?=@� �2�2�0��;<==<=?=@ *
�!�������"���������"��$������� �*
�!����EF;'����������$�=?=@� 7/[�21/3��;<==<=?=@ �)�*a�D	H&H#� #��JD����"L�����L����#��JD����"L�����L����*��$)*���)H������� B����� 5b�X2:�:UC���a��� =���a���� ���������	
��&��!
��)�c�����������������"���������$����������$����������
����
�����������+�����"�$��������������"��
�����������������������$���������!��������������������������$����������������'������$"����
��������$��������������������
���������������������$��
�������������!���������'����
�+�����
��������$����������������������������������
��!����)�*������������������������
��'�������
���������$������'������������������$��
�����������$��
�����������+�����"�!������!����$����������������
����
�������������$��
����������"��+����
��
��
�������������"��(��������d����������)	
������!��+���������(��!���������
��d������������������������$���
����
���
�������'������$����)*���������'������M����"�C'�=?=K'���
���e����
�����������+�����"��$��������������"���������������+���������$�������������!���$������������������$'��������
���������$��������������'�����������������$��
�����������$��
�����������+�����"�!������!��������!������$�������������

fghiihijk�flfm�no pqrstupvwxqyzq{vp|upy}hw~tzxphw~tzx��uv�w��x���fti�iif���i��j�i���f���vsjtsp�����g

�qqw�lhhpqrstupvwxqyzq{vp|upy}hw~tzxphw~tzx��uv�w��x���fti�iif���i��j�i���f���vsjtsp�����g �h�88



��������	�
����
�	������	��������	
�	��	�����	����	��	
��	�
	��	������	���	�������	������	���
�������	
�	��	�����
��	
��	�����	��	�
���	�����	������	����������
��	���	��	����������
��	�
�����	����	��������	����������	������	���	���
��	��������	��������
��	
�	��
������������
�	��	�	����	����	���	���������	���
��������	��
����
���	��������������������	������	
�	��	�����	
�	������	�	����	���	����������	��	�
���	��	���
�������
�	�	��
�	�
����
��	��
��������	����	�����������
�	�
�	�	���
�	
�	�
�	����	�	�
��������
����	
�	�� 	
�	��	������	������	�
�	��	�
���	�����	������	�	�������	����	
�	�
�	����	�������	��	��	���������	�
��	��������	���	���	����	!�	����	��	�������	����	"���	�����
���	����	��
�	�������	������	��
��������	����	�����������
�	�
�	�
�	����	�	�������	�����	
�������	��	����	����	
�	�
�	��������	��	���������	�
��	��������	����	 	 	 #$%&'&$(	 	 	 	 		 	 	 )����	 	 	 	 		 	 *+,+-*.	*$//0('%1		23��3���45	6����	��	��	7
���
��	���	�������	��	��	6������	
�6����83�93���45	:�����	�
	��	7
���
�	��	!�	����83��3���45	"
	;���
�����	���	;��
������83!23���45	"����	������<	����
���6���	"����	=�����	��������	�
	83!23�4�83!>3���45	6������	�
�	6���	"����	=�����8383���45	6������	�
�	"����	=�����	��	6���	���	��������	�
	83!>�93�3���45	)��	�������	�
�	"����	=�����	��	6���	���	�
�	�����	?
	��	���	��	��������@3>3���45	:����	6���	A
���	7
������	�
������	���	��
��	���	
�	B��	>�	���4�	"����=�����	�������	�
�	�@3!�3���4	���	�����	
��	�
	@3�>3���4�	���	�����	�����	�
	93�3���4�>323���45	:����	C������	"����	=�����	���	�
��	�
	6����43!�3�4	�����	C������	A
���	7
������	�
�����	���	���	�
	C������	D�

��E���
����	
�	�3!�3���4�	����	����	�
���	����	������	�
	F�
��	C��	��
����
��	����	���
�	�����
�	���������	�
���	�
	���
�����	�
�	�������	���������	��	���	������	���
��������	�
	�
�
�	����	�	�
�������	�
�����	�� 	
�	��	������	������	��	�	�������	����	
�	�	������	�
��
���	����	��	���	����	!�	����	��	�	�������	����	"���	����	������	��
�	������	��	�	��������	���	�
�	�
���	�����	�
�����	
�	���<	>	������	��	���	�
�	��
�	�����	����	���
���<	
�	9	������	��	���	��	��	�
��	������	���	����	
�	�
�	��	�
����		 +G	HIIJ KL$M&N	OP			QR0S'M&S&'T1	U0%'RN(V%	UN'0M	O&%'M&S'W					 *XMM0('	Y0Z'1	�������5	23�>3���4			����			���	 [('M$VXS0V1	�3!43���4	 ,N%'	+/0(V1	83��3���4	 L'N'X%1	23�>3���4\C���
��	��	��	7
���
��	�������	��	6������	
�	6���	\	������	>9��6������	
�	���4�	 ,$SN'&$(1	23�>3���4\C�	�]C:";=;̂	 ̂�_:
����D�����D�

� ̂�_:
����D�����D�

��
����
���;��
��� ̀�
� *aNb'0M0V!��	]
�� ���	]
��	 LX//NMT1	)
���	����
��c	��	)�������	)���	̂�������	�
	��
����	������	���	�����	�
�����
�
�
�����	
�	����
������	���������	���	�
	�
��������	
�����	���	��������	�
�_��	��������������
������	���	��
����	�������	
�	�
������	�
�	��������	���	��������	����	����������"�	����	�
���	�����	��	��������	�
	��	��	���������	�
�	��	��������d�	
��	����
���	���	��	�����
���	����
��c	��	��������	�
	���	�������	���������	�
	�	������	
�	������	�����	�����	��	������������
�	
�	���	
�	����������	"�	����	�
���	���
	����
��c	��	��������	�
	�
��������	
�����	�����������	����	��
���	������	���	������	����������
�	�����	���	�
	�
��������	
�����	�����������	�
�_��	����������	����
������	���	��
����	�������	
�	�
������	�
�	��	
�����
�	
���	����	��
���	�����	���	������	����������
�	�����	������	��	�
�������	
�	��	���������	����������	"�	����	�
���	�����	��	��������	�
	��
��	��	��
���	
�	���
��	���	��	����
��	�
���������	
�	����	���
��	��
�	���	���������	���������	��	�	�������	��
���	"�	����	�
��������	��	��������	�
	��������	�	�
�������	������	������	����	�
�	�	�������	���������������������	���
����	����	���	�����	����������
�	���	
���	��������	��
�����	��	��
�����"���	����	�
���	��_	���������	��������	���	��������
��	��	�
	��	�������	
�	�	������	������	�
���	)�������	)���	̂��������	 	 	 #$%&'&$(	 	 	 	 		 	 	 )����	 	 	 	 		 	 *+,+-*.	*$//0('%1		23!�3���45	;��
���	���	������	�
	��	7
���
�	��	4	����83�!3���45	�
�������	��	C�������	���	���	�
	;��
�����	���	;���
������83��3���45	"����	������	��	6����	���	�
	C������	�
�	�
��������"����	������	��������	�
	83��3���4�

efghhghij	ekel	mn opqrstouvwpxypzuo{tox|gv}sywogv}syw~�tu~v��w���esh�hhe���h��i�h���e���urisro�����f

�ppv~kggopqrstouvwpxypzuo{tox|gv}sywogv}syw~�tu~v��w���esh�hhe���h��i�h���e���urisro�����f ig�89



�����������	
��������������������������������������������	��������	��������������������������	
��	��������������������������������������������	�������	������������������������������������� �����!�����������������
�	������	"��	�������#�������������$�����	���$�����%���������������������	��&���	������
�����	�� ��	���������'����&�(���	�)	�����������*��	��+����������,����-���	�������	
�����������������	���	�"��	��	����������������-���	�������	
��	��������������.������������������	
��������������������������	���������/��	��������&����������������������������������	
������������������.������.0������������������	
����������������������������������������������	
����������������1.21��"����	�������������
��	�����1.01���������������-�����������������������	
�����2�������-�����������������������	
����������������������	������"��	������������������������	
�����������*������-�	����3	��
&"�4��������"��	��(���	������	�������������	�����������������	������	
����..�������*������-�	����5�����6�!��	��	��(����������	����1������������-�	����3	��
&"4��������"��	��(���	������	��(�������������2�������������������-�	����5�����6�!��	��	��(��������"��	��3	��
&"�4��������"��	�(���	������	��(����������2����������)	�-�	������������������������������(�����������������
	��	���2���������������������	
� �������	�7������&��8������!������-�	�����2�������������������	��������	�7������&��+���������������������	
��2�.��������*�������&�7  �� ������	�����7��	�����-���	�������	
�������	�����2����������������������7  �� ������	���� �	������������2���������1������������7  �� ������	�����������������������	��������7��	����������������*�������	�7������&�/���������������(���������������	�������1�����������7  �� ������	�����.��������*������7������&�4����������	��3	��
&�(������������1������������/��������������(������������.2�������7������&�����2���� �	�����9*�	��	
���1���������/���������������(���������:����.���������1������������4����������	��3	��
&�(�����������������������	������������	���	���������������;����������	
����"����	���	���������������#�����������������.�������*������(����������	�4���������<�3	��
&����.�������������������������� =>�?@AB C>DEFGEF�HI���JKLMN�OP�>FDQG�=RST�RLDUEV�UEUUWDGUP����� XYFFEGS�ZE[ST�(�� �������0�.���������������� ��� \GSFDVYREVT���.������� ]KUS�=̂ EGVT����������� _SKSYUT�0�.������1(�� �������&�-�������&����-�����1�(�� �������"�-��������������� ]DRKSWDGT�0�.������17��(̀ 7*�3�3%� %��,*����&;�����;����%��,*����&;�����;����(�	��(�	��3	������ '����� XNKMSEFEV.���̀��� �	��̀���� _Ŷ ^KFaT�������� ��b��8���	�7�����#�������������������	
���������
������!�����&�������������
�	�&���� �	��	�� ������	����������� ����	����� ����������������	���	�� ������ �����(���	�����������c�������
������!�����&������������������������	������� ���������	��!�������	"����	
���������	
�"��������� ���	
�����������������������&��������	����� ��������!����"����� ������������������������������	���&�������c������
������!�����&������������������������	�����������������	�������	����������&� ����		����	�������������������������	��	�����������������������	�������������	������������������	������������	��������	"��������	��"�������	
�����&���������&�� � � dDUWSWDG� � � � �� � � /�	�������������� � � � �� � X=]=eXf�XD̂ ^EGSUT��0�.��������-�
	����&�����6�!��	��"��	����� �������&�����-�������&���-����������������*����	�����������6�!��	������.�� �����������������3	
�����	
��	��3	�����	
���.0������������������������	�-�	�����	�� �����������������	
��
��	�����������g�	������������������.0�������������������������	
�����������������.2��������������̀����	
����������-�	���������������	
�

hijkkjklm�hnho�pq rstuvwrxyzs{|s}xr~wr{�jy�v|zrjy�v|z��wx�y��z���hvk�kkh���k��l�k���h���xulvur�����i

�ssy�njjrstuvwrxyzs{|s}xr~wr{�jy�v|zrjy�v|z��wx�y��z���hvk�kkh���k��l�k���h���xulvur�����i oj�90



�����������	
�����������
������������������������������������������	
�������������������������	�������������������������
������������������������ �������������!��	�����"�����������#������� �������������$�	���%�&��������"���������������'�������������
���������!��	����"��������(��	
�������������#�#�)������� ������*��������$�	���%�&��������"��������������������*������������	����	������	������
�������������
���
������
���	���������	�������	��������������� ��&���������������������+	����	�����������	����	�������+������	����,�-��������.��*��������	��������)������/��������.��������	
����������
��0�����*	���1������������ 23�4567 89:;;<==>?�@ABCD�EF���9>GBHD�>I�J>K�2BLA=AKM�N:KH�J>K�2BLA=AKM�;AO>;HP����� 9G;;ABH�QARHM�*����������S��������
������T��� UBH;>CGVACM���)������� J:KH�2WABCM���S������ XH:HGKM�Y�S)�����'Z������[��������T��������������)\�]\)�]��\$������	����������,�*"-,̂_�Z,$_���Y�S)�����]� J>V:H<>BM�Y�S)�����'���[_*[� [��. ���	�Z��	��Z����[��. ���	�Z��	��EA:C "����"��	�_������� �̂���� "
�T�����)���̀��� ����̀���� XGWW:;DM�-
��"������'a��b'̀���c�����$�	���%�&����������������c������*	����������T��&������
��b	���&����
����������T��	����������
������������/�	���	�/�����	��T����������	
��������������c������������������c����������	����������������	��/��b	�T������T�	�������-
���	��	�����������b�����	�������	
�	���������	�������	������������	����������\$*Z"d]��
���	�������������������TT������/�����T�	�����/������
����&��������
����	
���������������c������������������c�������-
��	����
���c�����$*Z"d���/���������
����
����/���&���������TT��&�����
�������
������������/�
����/�T��������/����	������������/��������TT��&��T��T����������	
���������������c����������������c�����/���	��������	��T�������������	����������������������������	�/�����T�	�������"�����������e�������	
�	��������
�&��������������T��&����������T��&����������
��������c����������T���������
������������T��&�������-
���������������e�����
��"��������$���*������/�����������
���1��	
�)/���#/��������������
��$��������������T�����
�����	������T�	�����������������/���	�����/��������
����
����/�����_����$���*������/��
������������������������������	�T�����&������	��	��/�����	�������	��	��/������	������������	��	����
���	������T��������
��	��T��
����&����������������
��������_����$���*�������	���������,���
��	�����
���T���	�������T�����
���	��������������������������������������������
����������������e���������
�����&�'���	������T��&������/��
��������������
���c���
��	���������������
�����T��������������	��T�����������T��������T����� � � f>K<H<>B� � � � �� � � ���������
������� � � � �� � 92J2g9h�9>WWABHKM��[_*[�Y�S)�����d�������������	��&�����������
����e���������������%��c���c�-
���������������	
���������Y��������/��
������	
���������Y��������/�����Y��Y�����������	
����������Y�S�������Y��)�����-
���������������	
���������Y���������������������������������������	
������Y������������	�������������		������-
�������������	
����������Y��)��������	���������������	
���������Y��������� ��������������T��������������	
������������	����������������������Y�)i������Y�)#�������*TT��T�����������T�����������	
������������	����������Y�#������� ��	��������T�����Z��������������*TT��T���������Y�#��������	
����������
�����������������*TT��T�������������S�������*��������������&��$*�$*Z"d����������������
��T��	���������
����������	
��e�������������
��"��������$���*�������� ������$�	���%�&��������"�������������������/������'������������*TT��T����������#�S���������������$�	���%�&��������	���������
�������T���T���������
��	����������#��)�������������
���������� ����������������������
��������(��������������
��$�	���%�&�������"����������#�����������������	����������d�����������
�������������#�)��������!�����������\�]/����������	����T������� ������������*TT��T����������#�)#�������,��	�������������/�������
����������������������T�������������S����������'������������*TT��T������������i�������*�������&����������T������1�.����
�������	��������������TT��T���������������������������$*�$*Z"d������
��	���������
��-��.�Z��	������������� ������*��������$�	���%�&��������"���������
����������
������������������'������������*TT��T���������

jklmmlmno�jpjq�rs tuvwxytz{|u}~u�zt�yt}�l{�x~|tl{�x~|��yz�{��|���jxm�mmj���m��n�m���j���zwnxwt�����k

�uu{�plltuvwxytz{|u}~u�zt�yt}�l{�x~|tl{�x~|��yz�{��|���jxm�mmj���m��n�m���j���zwnxwt�����k �l�91



�����������	
������������		�������������������������������	
�����������	�������� ����!��	�����������������	���"��#����$�%�&�	����	�	���������%�� '(�)*++ ,-.//01122�.3�4.567�8.92:3/231;���4.567�6<235=�>.:/610.3�5.//0??0.3@�A0?1:051?@B:.B2:1=�16CD����� -E::231�F2C1@��
� 	������G����������
	����� �H� I31:.AE52A@����G������ J161E?@�G�������K�
� 	������L�M�$��	��L��H�M	�	��K��
� 	���G�N�M	�	�	����H������ 4.5610.3@�G�������K�%��O�P"!Q!R� R��#P��$L��$�������R��#P��$L��$����������H%���$%!������� S�	��� -T6B12:2A��	�O���� ����O����� JE//6:=@�"
�����	���KU��VKO��	W�������$���X��������	�Q������W�	����$	��H��������	����
��	
������������V$��������	
��	L����� ��$�������H���	
���	�	��N�$����$	N�����$�� ��	����H$
�������H������W�	��������������W�	���H���$	���������	�$	�%�������	������������� ��$������H���	
��H����	����H�����	�$	�	�����$����$	��������	
��W����L�	
�� ��$ ����$	��H�	
�� �� ������	�$	N�������	
��W���	
����$�������$L�H����	���$������������$
�$���	L�	�����������	
�$����$	�����	
��	LN����� �$H��%�������	���������������$��������	����	������	
�������	��H �� ��	L�	�V���������	������V$
�������L�����HH�$	�����$�������$LN����� �$H��N�H�	
�� �� �����$������	
��H����	����H�����	�$	N������H���%�"
�����������N���	���N����������$��������	���	������	
�������	��H� �� ��	L�	�V���������	������V$
�������L�����HH�$	�����$�������$L�H�	
� �� ������$������	
��H����	����H�����	�$	�����	
���  �$��	������#������
�����H�	
���Y����������� �� ��	L�	�V��%� � � Z.?010.3� � � � �� � � M ������ � � � �� � -'4'[-\�-.//231?@����������M �����������%G���������M������L�	
��X�������������
� 	����%�]�����$�����HH�$	������̂�����L��N����_%�̀ ��_�������!������������ �����	���	��	
��X���������	��� %�%�̀ ����������Q����	
���	�����M���	��������������	��	
���������L%�a���������L%���������	�!�������������!�������%�̀ ��G�������Q�������H�����  �� ��	����̀���������$�������%����	���������	�%�_��b�������P�������L�M���	����$���X��������	�����		���������K��H������	���  �� ��	���N�
����	����$
�������	�����
��������̀������%���b�������Q�������H�����  �� ��	�����������	�	���������L�H������
����	� �����%���������	�M���	����$���X��������	�����		��������  �� ��	���%�����������P�������������L���$���X��������	�����		�������������H������	���  �� ��	���%�� J(�c*de ,-.:12?2�f;���4.567�6<235=�>.:/610.3�5.//0??0.3@�03A2/30>05610.3D����� -E::231�F2C1@��
� 	������b��g��������
	����� �H� I31:.AE52A@����_������ 46?1�'/23A@�̀��������� J161E?@�b��g�����K�  �������L�	
��X�������%��
� 	������L�M�$��	��L��H�M	�	�%��
� 	���gg̀ NM	�	�	����H�����%� 4.5610.3@�b��g�����KM%��O�P"!Q!R� R��#P��$L��$�������R��#P��$L��$����������H%���$%!������� S�	��� -T6B12:2A��	�O���� ����O����� JE//6:=@�"
�����	���KU��VKO��	W�������$���X��������	�Q������W�	����$	��H������ �������	
��V$��������	
��	L����� ��$������H���	
���	�	��N�$����$	N�����$�� ��	����H�$
�������H�����W�	��������������W�	���H���$	���������	�$	�N��V$� 	����� �$H��%�"
���$	�$��	�������V�	��$������$
�$���	L�����$�������$L�H����	���$��������h�����i�	
�	�$����	���H���������  ��	��N����� �$H��N��������������	
����$
�������H������W�	��������������W�	��%�"
���$	��	
��W�����������	�N��������	
���	
���N������������  ������	
�����	
��	���������	N�
���LN� ��	���LN����$���	�����LN�������  ����� �� ������H���$
�������H������W�	������������W�	��N����� �$H��%�"
��������������	
��W����������	��������N������$���	���H��N�������	
���	
���N� ��$��������$
������H������W�	�������������W�	��N�	
�	�	
���  �$��	��������	���H���N������HLN�����
����
��������	
�������N�	������	�N��HH$���N������� ��L����H������������	���L�$���N��$	��N���� ��$�����N����� �$H��N�	���		�$#N���	�����N����N�������������  �������L�	
�������%�"
�������������������	
��������	�� ��� 	�L���	HL�	
���  �$��	��H���L$���N��$	��N���� ��$������	���		�$#N���	�����N����N��������������  �������L�	
������������������	
��������	��H���L�$�� ���	����	
����H����%�"
������������� �$HL�	
�	�����  �$��	��
����� ��	L�	��	
����������	�����	���� �������	����H���N������HLN����
����
��������	
��������H�	
�������H����	����	HL�	
���  �$��	����$�� ���	��H���L���	
����H����N���������	���������	�� �L��� ��H������L���		�����	�����	���	��	
����������	N��������	
���  �$��	��  ������	
����		�����	%

jklmmlmno�jpjq�rs tuvwxytz{|u}~u�zt�yt}�l{�x~|tl{�x~|��yz�{��|���jxm�mmj���m��n�m���j���zwnxwt�����k

�uu{�plltuvwxytz{|u}~u�zt�yt}�l{�x~|tl{�x~|��yz�{��|���jxm�mmj���m��n�m���j���zwnxwt�����k �l�92



� � � ��������� � � � �� � � �	
��
� � � � �� � ������������������������������������ ��
��!��"
#��
�$����	%&%'��(����������$���)
�)*� %�+!��,-..�!$���
/�,����������
�0�1
��-�1�$� �0�
..-�1%�)!� *.� �2
����$���)
�)*��)��
��'��(�����%'�����������$��� �3���&,.45��
/�/$-�-�1�2
�)
�)*��)�%+!- ��$ -�1���)!� *.� ��
�'��������%+!- �3���&,.4��$ -�1���)!� *.� ��
�'��������%�'��'�����5�+!- �6�$ -�1�-��3���&,.4���)!� *.� �2
�'�78�����5��!�����)!� *.� �$1$-���
'�7����%�'��8�����5��)!� *.� �2
��!- ��$ -�1�-��3���&,.4�,*���
���$ 9���)!� *.� ��
��'��'�����%�:��������5��)!� *.� �2
��!- ��$ -�1�-��3���&,.4�,*���
���$ %�;
���/� $���4����)!� *.� %�(��������5�6�$ �-��3���&,.4���)
� ��-&�%�< �� ��
��!- ��$ -�1%�(��������5��$��� �3���&,.4�=
)$.�"
#��&����>
&&-����%�(�77�����5�3*�!
�$&�� �%�6�$ ���)
� ��-&��$� �$&�� � %�6�?�2�� ��
�=
)$.�"
#��&���>
&&-����%�8��'�����5�6�2�� ��
�3���&,.4�=
)$.�"
#��&����>
&&-�����$� �/$-�-�1�
��!�$-�1� $��%�8��7�����5��$��� �
*��
2����$���$� �&
#� ��
�3���&,.4%����������5��$��� ����$���=
)$.�"
#��&����>
&&-�����!�$-�1%�;
/�	
)�� ���
����$���2.

#
��5��!���/-..�&
#���
�3���&,.4%>3=3@><��	
��
� �,-..�-����	
�����
�$������$		�..$��� �)-�-
��
*��
2��$��=*-��<,-�	
��!$��!�. �!$��=3@><��)
*. ��
��*���-� �&�-2-)$�-
��	
#-�-
���-��$		.-)$�-
���,�)$*���-� �&�-2-)$�-
���$��$2
&�
2�$1��&�����!$��=3@><��$��)*���.4��
��$*�!
-A� ��
������-��
%�3��-��
 *)� 5��!��,-../
*. �$..
/�=3@><���
�*���	
#-�-
����-&-.$��
�)
*��-���$� �)-�-��%�� B�C�DEF G��H�����IJ�����KLM�LN��KO�P�H�L�����K����������Q����� �RHH����S�T���3&�� � ��(��(��������!�&.���	 2� U��H�VRK�V��(�7������� �L�������V��(��(������ B�L�R���'��7�����?@$-.� �W�$ .-���	*�*$����
�6*.��(7X,YX7:Y%�X=$���.
)$�-
��/$��=%�"<Z%�
�(��(�����Y� ��KL������'��7�����?�%�W03W� W��[I�LV @-�)$.@.

W��[�
.-)4@-�)$.@.

>
�2%>
�)%0�
..� Z��
� >!$	��� 7���\
*�� �� �\
*��� BR��LHO��]
*. ��$22-&��!���
.��$*�!
-�4�
2�.
)$.�$1��)4�2
&$�-
��)
&&-��-
���2
��!�-�-�-$�-
�5�)
� *)�5�$� �)
&	.��-
��
2�)!$�1���
2�
1$�-A$�-
�5��
1$�-A$�-
��5�$� ��̂�$��-�
-$.��#-)���2
�)-�-���$� � -��-)��%� � � ��������� � � � �� � � �*		
�� � � � �� � �������������������W03W%�:����������>
��- �� �-�����$���=
)$.�"
#��&����>
&&-�����,*��2$-.� 5�/-�!�.�$#���
��)
��- �%�(��(�������6�?�2�� ��
����$���=
)$.�"
#��&����>
&&-����5��$ ���)
� ��-&��$� �$&�� � ,4�$*�!
%�(�7��������_��
 *)� %�6�2�� ��
�6*.���>
&&-�����2
�$��-1�&���%S��LM�̀ �L�RH����DaS��LM�SHLKb��N���H����Dacdeffefdfg�chcihcg�jk

cdeffefgl�chci�jk mnopqrmstunvwnxsmyrmvzet{qwumet{qwu|}rs|t~�u���cqf�ffc���f��g�f���c���spgqpm�����d

}nnt|heemnopqrmstunvwnxsmyrmvzet{qwumet{qwu|}rs|t~�u���cqf�ffc���f��g�f���c���spgqpm�����d �e�93


	Agenda
	Item 4-LAFCo Minutes 09/26/24
	ATT-Minutes 09.26.24

	Item 5-Correspondence
	ATT A-CALAFCO The Sphere 2024

	Item 6-Protest Hearing for PIRMI and Sports Park Reorg to City of Woodland
	ATT A1-Reso2024-12 PIRMI Area and Sports Park Ordering Reorg to City of Woodland (Conducting Authority) 10.31.2024
	ATT A2-Reso2024-12 PIRMI Area and Sports Park Terminating Reorg to City of Woodland (Conducting Authority) 10.31.2024
	ATT B-Assessor's Office landowners and value of land for affected territory (LAFCo 24-01)
	ATT C-Excerpt from Sep 26, 2024 Staff Report

	Item 7-Elkhorn FPD Reorg Study Session
	ATT A-Elkhorn FPD Reorg Proposal Map and Process Chart

	Item 8-2025 LAFCo Meeting Calendar
	ATT-2025 LAFCo meeting calendar

	Item 9-EO Report
	ATT a-10.31.2024 Long Range Planning Calendar
	ATT b-EO Activity Report Sep23-Oct25
	ATT c-10.31.2024 CALAFCO Legislative Summary




